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 SENATOR BOB SMITH (Chair):  All right; are we all present 

and accounted for? 

 I think Governor Codey is on his way. 

 Let’s start as we normally start:  Welcome to-- 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBERS OF AUDIENCE:  --the most 

interesting Committee-- (laughter) 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right; let’s try it again. (laughter) 

 Welcome to-- 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBERS OF AUDIENCE:  --the best-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --the most interesting Committee in the 

Legislature.  All right. (laughter) 

 Ms. Horowitz, if you would call the roll. 

 MS. HOROWITZ (Committee Aide):  Senator Smith. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Present. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Greenstein. 

 SENATOR LINDA R. GREENSTEIN (Vice Chair):  Present. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Bateman. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Present. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Here. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Good. 

 So here’s the plan for today, because we have just a stunning 

agenda, I think; very interesting stuff.  So what we’re going to do is to do 

four bills quickly.  I don’t believe they’re controversial at all, but that’s 

usually the kiss of death when I say that. (laughter)  We want to do the 
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Environmental Infrastructure Trust bills, and then Senator Holzapfel’s tax 

credit for the removal of lawns near the Barnegat Bay.   

 And then we’re going to go into our two hearings; and what 

we’re doing is developing a record for the Legislature -- the one hearing is 

on chromium-6, which is now in the news and is of concern.  That will be 

the second of the two hearings.  The first hearing will be septic density, and 

the validity or invalidity or good scientific basis or not good scientific basis 

of the scientific sampling used for the modeling of the septic density.  And 

it’s really -- we want to focus on science; we don’t want to have any--  I 

don’t want to hear about, “I hate the Highlands Act,” or, “I love the 

Highlands Act.”  What’s the science?  So we’re going to do that first of the 

two, and then we’ll do chromium. 

 And then, lastly, we’re going to have a discussion of the -- we’re 

going to SCR-39, which is the amendment to the Constitution on the 

dedication of NRDs, Natural Resource Damages.  So that’s the plan. 

 So with that being said, do we have the Environmental 

Infrastructure Trust present? 

 Come on up and introduce yourselves.  And for anybody who 

hasn’t heard about the Environmental Infrastructure Trust, this is probably 

the most successful program in State government. 

D A V I D   Z I M M E R:  Thank you, Senator. 

 Red is on?  Yes. (referring to PA microphone) 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Committee 

members.  My name is David Zimmer, and I am the Executive Director of 

the NJEIT. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  Good. 

J U D Y   K A R P,   Esq.:  Good morning.  I am Judy Karp, and I am the 

Legal and Compliance Officer for the NJEIT. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay.   

 So here’s the plan, Mr. Zimmer.  We have two bills directly on 

topic -- S-2731, which is Senator Greenstein and Senator Bateman, 

authorizing the New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust to expend 

additional sums to make loans for environmental infrastructure projects in 

2017.  The second Bill is Governor Codey and Senator Gill, amending the 

list of environmental infrastructure projects approved for long-term funding 

for Fiscal Year 2017 to include new projects, and revise allowable loan 

amounts for already-approved projects. 

 And then, thirdly -- this is not your Bill, but we would like 

comments on it -- this is S-853 by Senator Stack, which requires local 

governments and authorities to obtain financing cost estimates, required to 

be provided by the New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust, for 

certain projects. 

 So we would love to have comments on all three. 

 And, I’m sorry -- also included is--  We have the Concurrent -- 

or now, I guess, Assembly Bill 1649, which is Assemblyman Schaer and 

Assemblywoman Spencer, requiring local governments and authorities to 

obtain financing cost estimates from New Jersey Environmental 

Infrastructure Trust for certain projects.  And that is the analog of S-853? 

 MS. HOROWITZ: (off mike)  Right.  We’re amending S-853 

to be identical to the Assembly’s. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  Right.  We’re amending S-853 to be 

identical to A-1649. 

 Okay.  So with that large slug of requests, take it and run. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  All right. 

 Once again, thank you, Mr. Chairman and Committee 

members.  It is always fun to come back, particularly to this Committee. 

 This is, really, the inaugural year.  If you remember, back in 

May, it was this Committee that really kick-started the change to our 

statute that allows -- really provides flexibility for communities and regional 

utility authorities, if they weren’t on the original project priority list, to get 

long-term financing in May.  But if the project has proceeded to a point 

where they are now ready to receive, they don’t have to wait until next year.  

We actually have the opportunity now to come before you as these two 

appropriation bills do--  And both appropriation bills -- they’re identical 

bills; one is for the DEP, one is for the EIT.  What it does is it amends the 

list so we can actually add additional projects for long-term financing this 

year.  It also amends the list to allow anybody who was on May’s list -- if 

you have a change order, there’s a--  When you have construction projects, 

and you open up the ground, you never know what you’re going to find.  

There are always changes that contractors need, and sometimes those 

changes cause the dollar amount of the project to go above the appropriated 

amount.  It gives those projects the opportunity to come back and say, 

“Can you please increase my dollar amount?”  And they don’t have to wait 

until next year to come back into us for a second loan to supplement a loan, 

which is really -- it’s wasted time and wasted costs on their expense. 
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 So the bills in front of you are really quite simple.  They’re just 

amendments; that’s all they are.  They’re amendments of the list.  We add 

30 new projects, and 11 projects have asked for dollar increases.  So we 

have 41 changes; and those 41 changes added an additional $230 million to 

the original $411 million that you all approved back in May.  So there’s an 

additional $230 million worth of environmental projects that are now 

available for long-term financing; and another $230 million, of construction 

jobs that are going to get done. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right.  And where does the money come 

from, David? 

 MR. ZIMMER:  So the sources of funds for the program -- we 

get Federal dollars every single year.  New Jersey gets about $80 million in 

both Clean Water and Drinking Water -- Clean Water being sewers -- Clean 

Water and Drinking Water.  And then, what the Trust does is we work with 

the DEP; we lever those dollars.  The dollars get repaid; we take those 

repayments every single year and lend them out again.  So we typically 

have, in any given year, anywhere between $500 million and $700 million 

worth of financing available for environmental projects, in a combination of 

money that the State provides at 0 percent and money that EIT matches 

with municipal bonds at a AAA rate.  So I can tell you, we did our last deal 

in May.  We did a bond deal where three-quarters of the funds came from 

the State at 0 percent; a quarter of the funds for the projects came from our 

AAA bond deals.  We issued 20-year paper at 0.586 percent for your local 

communities. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, a quick reaction to that -- and I’m 

sure every Senator on the Committee has a reaction -- you’re good for the 
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taxpayers, because we’re getting these projects done at the lowest possible 

interest rate. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  You’re good for the environment, because 

we have projects that, whether they’re water, sewer, whatever, we’re 

cleaning up and doing better -- a better job of it.  And you’re doing it 

efficiently, and cost-effectively, and you’re helping us every which way -- 

unless somebody sees it differently. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  And it doesn’t touch the General Fund, 

Senator. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  And it doesn’t touch the General Fund,  

and there are no new taxes. (laughter)  Oh, did I say that?  That’s great; I 

mean, it really is wonderful.  And by the way, you’re very good for the 

economy-- 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --because you put a lot of people to work.  

Triple, out-of-the-park grand slam. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Senator, if I may.  I really just have to 

commend the members on this Committee.  You guys have been -- we’ve 

made a lot of efficiency changes in the last five years.  And you guys have 

been incredibly supportive at the front-end -- of helping us make those 

changes.  So thank you very much. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, you know, before we get to be 

declared a love fest (laughter), maybe we should--  Let me ask you one other 

question.  That’s Senator Stack’s Bill, which says to local governments, “At  
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least find out what we can do for you in terms of financing.”  Do you think 

that’s a good Bill? 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes, we support that Bill.  All it really requires 

is for somebody to come in--  We have a mock calculator that we actually 

set up and tried it out with a couple of our stakeholders.  It essentially asks 

for three things besides your name and your contact info.  It asks you how 

much money you want to borrow, it asks you what your rating is, and it 

asks you for how long you want to borrow.  And we allow flexibility in there 

if you want to do short-term, band-type borrowing and then extend it out.  

So the model is actually fairly robust; it takes less than five minutes.  You 

give us that information, you push “enter,” and immediately we will -- we 

have a calculator in the background; it calculates how much we estimate it 

would cost at the current interest rate curve if you came in and borrowed 

through the Trust, versus if you came in and borrowed 100 percent of the 

funds on your own, independently.  And you would see that on -- if you 

came in and you borrowed a 20-year loan, on average, you’re going to save 

somewhere -- 25 percent of your loan amount, give or take.  If you do a 30-

year loan, you’re going to save upwards of 40 percent. 

 So again, it’s just--  You don’t have to come into the Trust; but 

it really is an eye-opener-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  --for people to say, “You know, I didn’t realize 

that this program could be that effective for us.” 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Perfect. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  It’s a transparency bill. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Any questions? 
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 Sam -- Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  On the latter point, there, I’m sure 

there’s no problem in your telling what it would cost if they borrowed with 

you; but I noticed it also does require you to tell them what it would cost if 

they borrowed somewhere else.  Will that be sort of a challenge coming up 

with those figures? 

 MR. ZIMMER:  So the way that we get to that dollar amount 

is, we take their rating and there are curves that -- there’s an index that--  

Thompson is a financial provider of information.  There is a curve that they 

put out.  And we gauge ourselves against that curve.  And if you’re not AAA 

rated like the Trust, for every grade that you are lower than the Trust 

there’s an additional amount of coupons.  So-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Okay; I just wanted to be sure that 

wouldn’t be a challenge-- 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  --estimating what somebody else 

would charge them. (laughter) 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Right.  So again, it is an estimate, but I would 

guess that we would be within 5 percent of the final cost on either side. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Mr. Chairman, through you, if I may. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, sir. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  First of all, I just want to say thank 

you; you’ve been very involved in obviously the Somerville landfill 

redevelopment. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes. 
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 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Can you give just a quick update on 

where we are with that money? 

 MR. ZIMMER:  With the Somerville funds? 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  They’ve actually started-- 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  The Green Seam. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes.  So they have started drawing on that, 

which means the construction has started and they’re coming into the 

Trust.  I don’t have the exact dollar amounts that they’ve drawn.  And if I 

remember that project, it was north of $10 million. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes, I think it’s $13 million-- 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  --but I wasn’t sure. 

 MS. KARP:  It’s $14 million. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  So they’ll be able to go back next year 

to apply for more?  Or is that the entire appropriation for that? 

 MR. ZIMMER:  So the way the construction work--  So every 

project that comes into the Trust, we have now changed the program so 

that you come in for a construction loan program first.  And then what we 

do is, we say -- if they need more funds, then what we do is, on a quarterly 

basis, we put that project list in front of you -- through the aides -- and we 

say, “Here are the new projects,” or “Here are projects that have change 

orders that they need an increase.”  So it’s a very flexible, very seamless 

borrowing process to get the construction work done.  And then once that 

construction work is done, then they actually make the project eligibility   
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list that we put in front of you and say, “Okay, now can we long-term 

finance them with the State dollars?” 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Good stuff.  Right; thank you. 

 MR. ZIMMER:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Good.  As I said, terrific program. 

 So let’s move--  And just for the record, we have slips from a 

number of entities indicating “no need to testify.”  Mr. Tittel from the 

Sierra Club, in favor, no need to testify; Zoe Baldwin, from the UTCA, no 

need to testify and in favor; Ciro Scalera, New Jersey Laborers, in favor, no 

need to testify. 

 So let’s-- 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  May I make a motion to-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  How about number one, S-2731, by 

Greenstein and Bateman -- a motion by Senator Bateman, seconded by 

Senator Greenstein.  Let’s take a roll call on that. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  On Senate Bill 2731, Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Bateman. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Greenstein. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Smith. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes.  The Bill is released. 

 The second Bill is 2732 by Governor Codey and Senator Gill, 

amending the list of Environmental Infrastructure projects.  The motion to 

release is by Senator Greenstein, seconded by Senator Bateman. 
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 Let’s take a roll call on that. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  On Senate Bill 2732, Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Bateman. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Greenstein. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Smith. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes.  And that Bill is released. 

 And then the third EIT-related Bill is the Stack Bill, S-853.  

And we’re conforming that to the Assembly Bill, A-1649.  This is the Bill 

that requires municipalities to, at least, run the financing by the 

Environmental Infrastructure Trust, but doesn’t require them to use their 

loan provisions if they don’t want to.  It’s just good old -- plain old good 

government.   

 And we do have slips on that.  Peggy Gallos, Association of 

New Jersey Environmental Authorities, in favor, no need to testify; Judy 

Karp, the Environmental Infrastructure Trust, in favor, no need to testify; 

the same for Mr. Zimmer; the same for Mr. Scalera; and Lori Buckelew, 

League of Municipalities, who the last time around had some concerns, and 

they are now withdrawing any opposition to the Bill and have no need to 

testify.  So we have a third very happy Bill. 

 So a motion to release 853 and 1649, conforming to 1649. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  I’ll move it. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Don’t we have to amend one of 

them first? 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  What’s that? 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Didn’t you say we have to amend 

one of them to make it so-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, we have to -- I think we can in the 

same motion, right? -- say that Senate 853 will be amended to A-1649, and 

then released; yes, or not? 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  We can vote on the whole thing, amending 

it-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:   We can vote on the whole thing, and 

amending it at the same time, yes. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  To do a Committee substitute, or is 

it-- 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  No, it’s amendments to the Senate Bill. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Right, to conform with the Assembly. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Right. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  That’s what Sam said. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  We can just make a motion to 

amend it, and then we’ll pass it. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  And then releasing the Assembly Bill too. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Right. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  He’s got that motion. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Second. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  Senator Thompson, seconded by Senator 

Bateman. 

 Let’s take a roll call on that. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Okay, to amend Senate Bill 853 to make it 

identical to Assembly Bill 1649 (1R) and to release both the Senate, as 

amended, and the Assembly Bill, Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Bateman. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Greenstein. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Smith. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes.  And the amended 853 is released, 

with--  

 SENATOR CODEY:  I vote-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --A-1649-- 

 SENATOR CODEY:  I vote “yes.” 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Oh, I’m sorry; Governor Codey. 

(laughter) 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  And Governor Codey. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Sorry about that.  I didn’t see you get in 

there. 

 SENATOR CODEY:  Understood. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  And if you want to vote on the other two 

bills, we’d love to have your vote on them. 

 SENATOR CODEY:  I’m sure. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  They are the EIT bills. 

 All right; so one more bill before we get to the hearings, and 

that’s Senator Holzapfel’s 1160, providing a tax credit -- I believe, it’s $250 

for removal of lawns near the Barnegat Bay,  If you remember all the 

hearings that we had on the Barnegat Bay, probably the single-biggest issue 

with the Barnegat Bay is fertilizers going into the Bay.  Senator Holzapfel 

has an incentive for people to take out lawns.  And if you end up putting in 

stone; stone doesn’t need to be fertilized.  So it would be a very good thing. 

 So Doug O’Malley, in favor, no need to testify; Ed Waters, 

New Jersey Green Industry Council, opposed. 

 Ed Waters, come on up.  What’s the problem? 

E D   W A T E R S:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the 

Committee. 

 Again, Ed Waters with State Street Associates, representing 

New Jersey Green Industry Council.  New Jersey Green Industry Council is 

an umbrella organization representing the industries of lawn care, 

landscape, golf course superintendents, arborists, pest control, nurseries, 

and retail. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 MR. WATERS:  Again, Senator, you and I have had this 

conversation multiple times.  We would certainly disagree with you that 

fertilizer is a big contributor to Barnegat Bay’s pollution.  In fact, we believe 

it’s a rather small contributor compared to other things that are 

contributing to pollution in the Bay. 

 But we think that this Bill is going to only exacerbate some of 

the issues that are listed in the Bill, especially when you’re talking about 
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stone or shells, which will create additional runoff because there’s no grass 

to stop the runoff from going into the Bay. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Now, you do understand we didn’t say 

asphalt?   

 MR. WATERS:  Well, it’s still rocks. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  This is stone or shells. 

 MR. WATERS:  Yes, but it’s still-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I believe that’s a permeable surface that 

water can still sink into the ground. 

 MR. WATERS:  Well, let me turn it over to John.  John can-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right. 

 MR. WATERS:  John is an agronomist; he can speak more to 

this. 

J O H N   B U E C H N E R:  Agronomy is the study of soil science and 

crops.  And in this situation, our crop is turf grass. 

 It’s been proven in university studies that turf grass is a very 

good filter.  Oftentimes when they put in shell or stones, they’ll put plastic 

or landscape fabric down, which actually will impede vertical movement of 

moisture.  And so you’re actually going to increase runoff.   

 And stone lawns are not -- they get weeds.  And people then 

put on pesticides to control the weeds, which could lead to additional 

runoff into the Bay. 

 Turf grass is a very, very good filter; it also--  Even if you 

fertilize it or not, it’s still going to filter out air contaminants and other 

things, and trap them; where with a stone lawn, it’s going to run right off. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay.  Anything else? (no response) 
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 Okay; then the last witness is Jeff Tittel, in favor. 

 Mr. Tittel. 

J E F F   T I T T E L:   Thank you.  And I also want to thank this 

Committee for all the work that they’ve done on Barnegat Bay.  I wish some 

of those bills would have actually been signed so we would be much farther 

along in the protection of the Bay. 

 We support the Bill for a couple of reasons.  One, nonpoint 

pollution -- a lot of it coming from lawns, the major source of the 

eutrophication problems in the Bay. 

 Another reason we support the Bill is that the over-pumping of 

the aquifers in the Barnegat Bay area has led to a decline in stream flows, 

keeping fresh, clean water out of the Bay.  And lawns are a major culprit.  

You know, a lawn can use thousands of gallons in the summertime, and we 

really do not need green lawns down the shore.  It makes no sense. 

 And so we support this legislation because I think, one, it will 

help limit fertilizer use and runoff from lawns; and, two, it will help save 

water, and we’re in a drought. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 There are no other witnesses. 

 Any comments from members of the Committee?  

 Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  I have two problems with this.  One 

is that this gives $250 tax credit in perpetuity.  I could see giving a tax 

credit for some incentive or so on, but in perpetuity -- you know, forever -- 
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somebody’s getting $250 in tax credits, and so on, for the next 100 years or 

God knows how many years. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So if it was limited to only as long as it 

remained stone-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Well, let me finish these, then we 

can (indiscernible). 

 The second thing is, again, okay, we give this $250 tax credit.  

The home is sold; they put in shell, or rock, or whatever.  The home is sold 

and somebody comes back in and puts in grass again.  Now what happens 

there? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, I think you have a reasonable point. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Does the tax credit go away?  I 

mean, it just says the tax credit is given for putting it in; it doesn’t say 

anything about if you take it away later. 

 SENATOR CODEY:  It’s a very de minimus amount of money, 

to use a Republican word. (laughter) 

 Because you didn’t say agronomy, right? 

 MR. BUECHNER:  (off mike)  (indiscernible) certified. 

 SENATOR CODEY:  You can use an agronomist-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  I bring these up; I’m going to 

abstain.  You can pass it on, and the sponsor can look at these -- my 

problems.  

 SENATOR SMITH:  So Sam, what’s -- is the solution to revise 

the Bill, amend the Bill to say that you’re only eligible for the credit as long 

as it-- 
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 SENATOR THOMPSON:  No, I’m saying go ahead--  I’ll 

abstain; pass it out and pass my comments along to the sponsor, then he 

can do what he wants.  

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  He wants to talk to Jim about it. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  That’s all. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay; so you’re okay leaving it as is 

without amending it here? 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes, I want to talk to the sponsor 

about his intentions. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right; sounds good. 

 But I do think you have a very valid point. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  He does; he has very good points. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  There’s no question about that. 

 All right; so a motion to release by Senator Bateman, seconded 

by Senator Thompson, with concerns noted. 

 And let’s take a roll call on that. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  On Senate Bill 1160, Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Abstain. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Bateman. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Governor Codey. 

 SENATOR CODEY:  Yes, I’m going to vote for it.  But you’re 

going to have to -- if you want to do away with the crushed rock and 

everything else, it’s going to cost you more than $250. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  There are a lot of questions about the 

Bill. 
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 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Greenstein. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Yes, but I also think that the 

questions raised were good ones; so hopefully we can get them answered. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, they were. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Smith. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes.  And Senator Bateman will speak to 

Senator Holzapfel, as well as Senator Thompson, and get it straightened 

out. 

 Okay, so-- 

 SENATOR CODEY:  And listen, by the way, on the artificial 

turf as a lawn  -- is that like plastic on the sofa? (laughter)  Is that one over 

your head, sir? (laughter)  Where were you born and raised? 

 MR. TITTEL: (off mike)  Where was your grandmother’s 

house? (laughter) 

 SENATOR CODEY:  Exactly. 

 MR. BUECHNER:  (off mike)  Your question is, what’s the 

material -- what’s it made of?  

 SENATOR CODEY:  No, no, forget about it, sir.  We come 

from different neighborhoods. (laughter) 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay, so let’s get to our two separate 

issue hearings.  And let’s go with the proposed septic density changes to the 

Highlands.   

 And remember, we’re trying to focus.  The focus is, are the rules 

which are based on the data points from the Well Testing Act -- are they 
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the correct scientific basis to be used for the development of those new 

septic standards?   

 And this was by invitation, so let me start with representatives 

of the DEP. 

 Mr. Cantor, if you would come forward and talk to us, we 

would appreciate it. 

R A Y M O N D   C A N T O R,   Esq.:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 

members of the Committee. 

 My name is Raymond Cantor; I am Chief Advisor to 

Commissioner Bob Martin of the Department of Environmental Protection. 

 With me today is Jeff Hoffman.  Mr. Hoffman is the State 

Geologist. 

 I would just like to start by giving an overview of what the rule 

does, and how we got to this point, and why we made some of the decisions 

we made.  And then I will let Mr. Hoffman talk more about the science 

behind the rule. 

 When the Legislature adopted the Highlands Water Protection 

and Planning Act, it also required that the Department adopt a septic 

density standard for its regulation in the preservation area.  N.J.S.A. 13:20-

32e requires the Department to establish “a septic density standard 

established at a level to prevent degradation of water quality, or to require 

the restoration of water quality, and to protect ecological uses from 

individual, secondary, and cumulative impacts, in consideration of deep 

aquifer recharge available for dilution.”  

 In setting the septic density standard, we did two things 

initially.  One, we chose a nitrate as a surrogate pollutant.  So nitrate was 
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chosen, not just because of its impact to groundwater, but because it was 

representative of other impacts from other pollutants that could occur from 

development.  And if we could control nitrates then we’re, therefore, using 

it as a surrogate to prevent other pollutants as well. 

 We also used the Trela-Douglas model to measure nitrate -- you 

know, input from septic systems.  That model has been used throughout the 

state, and is fairly well-established in New Jersey. 

 Because a septic density standard is essentially a planning tool 

to limit development of where it’s applied, we set our standards on a 

regional basis, and we also look to find out the inputs on a regional basis. 

 The Department, back in May 2005, and then again in 

December 2006, adopted and readopted our initial and now current 

standards for septic density.  We established septic density standards in two 

parts of the Preservation Area, a forested and nonforested.  Essentially in 

the forested area -- what that standard became was 88 acres for every septic 

system in the forested, and 25 acres for every septic system in the 

nonforested area. 

 We were then sued by the Farm Bureau, and they challenged 

several of our decision points.  One, they challenged our use of the drought 

of record as being the amount of precipitation that we were accounting for 

in the model.  They challenged the amount of people we assumed per 

household.  We chose the number 4; they thought we should be using the 

statewide average of 2.7.  And they thought that our background nitrate 

was set at an arbitrary low ambient nitrate level, again because of, in part, a 

limited data set that was used for that analysis. 
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 The case went to the Appellate Division; the Appellate Division 

remanded it back to the Department to supplement the record.  It went to 

OAL; OAL upheld our analysis.  It was then upheld or agreed upon by the 

Commissioner at that point in time; and then went back up to the 

Appellate Division for further review.  At that point in time, we asked the 

Appellate Division to hold off on its hearing of the case, as we could do 

further study of the input and the challenges by the Farm Bureau.  

Ultimately, in January of 2012, we asked the Court -- and the Court agreed 

and the Farm Bureau agreed -- to remand the case back to DEP and end the 

challenge without prejudice.  And that began our analysis of that standard 

in depth. 

 When we looked at all the parameters that were done for this 

rule, again we looked at each one.  And we essentially upheld most of what 

we had done before.  We retained the approach of using nitrate as a 

surrogate pollutant; we retained our original approach of using -- looking at 

our parameters and continuing to use the Trela-Douglas model; we retained 

the number of occupants that were used in a household; significantly, we 

retained using drought of record as a conservative factor in determining 

amount of water coming down for recharge.  But we did make two changes 

to our rule; and that’s the rule that’s being proposed right now, it’s in the 

Register.  When we did the initial rule, I said we have broken it down into 

forested and nonforested areas.  But that was at a point before the Regional 

Master Plan was adopted by the Highlands Council.  So we had nothing 

from a planning perspective by which to apply the septic density model. 

   Now that the RMP is out there -- and we believe this is very 

consistent with legislative intent -- we wanted to be consistent with how the 
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Highlands Council manages development in its region.  So then rather than 

using forested and nonforested, we relied then on their Land Use Capability 

Zones.  And there are basically three:  There is Existing Community, which 

is the more developed; Conservation, which is largely farmland; and the 

Protection, which is largely undeveloped forested area.  So rather than 

forested and nonforested, we use the three Land Use Capability Zones. 

 Significantly, we also changed the background target nitrate 

level.  We commissioned the U.S.G.S. to do a report for us -- a peer review 

report.  The methodology that the U.S.G.S. had come up with--  Again, I 

mentioned it was peer-reviewed, but it was supported by the Office of 

Science; it was also supported by our independent Science Advisory Board 

that looks at issues for the Department and makes recommendations.  The 

Science Advisory Board is largely made up of academics and other 

professionals within the field.   

 So again, as a result of those two changes, we essentially -- and 

changing the background nitrate level -- we changed, going from 88 and 25 

and forested and nonforested, to basically having septic density standards of 

23 acres for the Protection Area, 12 acres for the Conservation Area, and 10 

acres for the Existing Community 

 At this point, I will turn it over to Mr. Hoffman to talk more 

about the science behind those analyses. 

J E F F R E Y   L.   H O F F M A N:  Good morning.  Thank you for this 

opportunity. 

 I am Jeff Hoffman, a DEP employee.  I am also the New Jersey 

State Geologist. 
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 I’ve been working on this issue since the late 2000s, and have 

been involved in generating the science that was behind the decisions that 

were made. 

 As Mr. Cantor said, we’re using a septic density model to 

estimate how much land you need -- each system needs to have to generate 

enough recharge to dilute the nitrate coming out of a system to the 

standard you pick.  For that purpose, there are four input parameters:  the 

number of people per home; their nitrate loading rate -- pounds per person 

per year; the recharge that occurs through this land; and then the nitrate 

target you are shooting for.  At the time of the initial development of the 

Highlands regulations, the Department went with 4 people per home; a 

nitrate load of 10 pounds per person per year; for a recharge rate -- in order 

to estimate what the active recharge would be, we chose to use the drought 

of record during the 1960s, a time of much lower rainfall and recharge than 

normal, of 9.8 inches per year. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So that, theoretically, would be a 

conservative assumption.  In other words, you’re not getting more dilution 

because you’re using a heavier rainfall; you’re getting less dilution because 

you’re using a drought number. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, sir; that’s correct. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  And the less dilution results in larger lot 

sizes.  You need more land to capture the recharge. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  And the last was, what is the appropriate 

nitrate target that you are trying to meet as a planning tool?  At the time, 
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the Department chose to use an approach -- we use the word nonforested 

versus forested, based upon land use parameters and looking at monitoring 

wells in both nonforested and forested areas.   

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Excuse me. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, please. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  You don’t have your mike turned 

on. (referring to PA microphone) 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Yes, it’s on. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Is that better? 

 SENATOR CODEY:  No. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Maybe move it closer to your-- 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  I’ll talk louder. 

 SENATOR CODEY:  There you go. 

 SENATOR SMITH:    All right. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Okay, sorry. 

 In 2008, the approach was to look at forested versus 

nonforested lands.  We were quite conservative at the time in trying to 

estimate which monitoring wells were only in forested lands.  The result was 

that there were only seven wells that we felt were appropriately 

characteristic of forested lands; and those seven wells resulted in an average 

nitrate target of 0.21 milligrams per liter.  That, in turn, translated to a 

septic zoning of 88 acres per system. 

 In nonforested land, in contrast, it was 0.76 milligrams per liter 

-- those are estimates based on studies of northern New Jersey -- resulting in 

a septic density estimate of 25 acres per systems. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So the seven wells that you used-- 



 

 

 26 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, sir. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --how deep was the sample? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  It varied.  There was shallow and deep; they 

ranged from 33 deep to, I believe, about 400.  It was a range. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  The approach of using only seven wells to 

generate the target was criticized during the hearings; and it is a small 

sample size.  So after that, we decided to find as much nitrate data as we 

could.  The biggest data set available is the Private Well Testing Act; 

however, that is not uniformly distributed across the Highlands.  We 

needed a way to leverage that data to make it apply to the entire Highlands 

area, not just locations where the data came from. 

 To that end, we contracted with the United States Geological 

Survey to develop a model that would allow prediction of medium nitrate 

concentrations in areas where there were no observations, based upon areas 

where there were observations. 

 They first developed a model that would -- using available data 

from very accurately located wells -- what’s called an NWIS database, N-W-

I-S -- to generate which parameters -- which land-use parameters most 

accurately predict the nitrate values observed in the areas around those 

wells.  They came up with a series of five different parameters in their 

model.  Then they reapplied that model using all the data available, 

including the Private Well Testing Act, to estimate land use throughout the 

Highlands.  We were leveraging data from where we had it, using aggression 

model to estimate nitrate values where there were no values measured. 
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 At that time, there were a total of 19,670 data points in the 

model used to do this.  Of this, 19,371, the majority, were from the Private 

Well Testing Act. 

 During this approach, we ran into one problem -- was that of 

that 19,000 data points, about 25 percent were non-detects.  A non-detect is 

when you try to measure the nitrate in a sample, but the nitrate value is so 

low it goes below the detection limit of the analytic method used. 

 A quarter of 19,000 is a very significant number.  How do we 

account for that?  The U.S.G.S. looked at four different methods ranging 

from very conservative to not.  Very conservative was assumed that ND value 

was zero; there actually is no nitrate in that sample.  The least conservative 

was to assume the value was the detection limit.  If your detection limit, for 

example, was 0.1 milligrams per liter, and you measured something below 

that -- such as zero, 0.1, or something in between.  They reran the model 

four times using four different approaches to all NDs.  At the end, the 

Department decided to be most conservative and assumed all ND values 

were actually zero milligrams per liter.  So that resulted in the most 

conservative number -- trying to leverage the Private Well Testing Act data 

to make it useful to the entire Highlands. 

 As was mentioned, this resulted in estimates of, in the Existing 

Community Zone, 1.77 milligrams per liter; Conservation, 2.6 milligrams; 

Protection, 0.8 milligrams per liter. 

 There have been a number of concerns expressed about the 

Private Well Testing Act data.  The first is that -- some people have said 

that the data has not been properly quality assured, quality controlled.  I do 

not believe that’s a valid concern.  All samples taken for the Private Well 
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Testing Act are done by certified labs.  These labs must be recertified yearly, 

with the results submitted to the State.  So all the values are done by 

certified laboratory technicians in certified labs. 

 The State runs a check-in when the data comes in via our data 

portal, where they come with reported GPS locations.  We run a check on 

GPS locations, versus the reported lot and block, to make sure the value is 

reported for the appropriate location. 

 And last, when a report comes in, it’s impossible to check every 

single value because we do not have an actual lab sheets in front of us.  But 

we look for anonymously high values.  If a number is out of bounds, we 

would rather -- we ask the lab to resubmit that data point. 

 So I believe the QA/QC is properly done on the Private Well 

Testing Act data. 

 There’s also been an expressed concern that the private wells 

are too shallow; that they are not properly indicative of deeper groundwater 

quality, as compared to other observation ells.  The observation wells 

generally are in the NWIS database; the domestic wells are in the Private 

Well Testing Act.  I have pulled the well depths for the NWIS wells, versus 

domestic well depths in the counties in the Highlands, and there is no 

correlation there between depths and nitrate values.  In the Highlands, you 

have more fractured rocks, and it is possible that nitrate can travel down 

fractures more quickly than you would expect without being diluted or 

modified by any sort of chemical reaction.  There is good correlation 

between depth of the well and nitrate value.  So in that sense, the deeper 

wells do not give you -- they generally are lower in nitrate, but not always.  

In this sense, a private well--  Also, in the Highlands, a lot of private wells 



 

 

 29 

are quite deep.  There are some areas that do not have -- are not very good 

aquifers, and the private wells tend to go deeper also.  So there is not a good 

correlation there. 

 And the last argument that has been made about the recharge 

value is that deep aquifer recharge is not properly calculated by using the 

drought of record.  Deep aquifer recharge is not actually a term of the art; 

no one actually knows how to calculate that.  When we were trying to 

figure out just how to estimate that, we chose to use drought of record.  

During a major drought, the shallow groundwater paths flow up -- it hasn’t 

rained -- and the deeper paths containing older water -- they are the flow 

paths that make it to the stream.  And we’ve made estimate of recharge 

based upon stream base flows during the drought of record in the 1960s. 

 Any questions? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  No, I thought it was very elucidating 

testimony. 

 Senator Thompson. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Please. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Your nitrate levels-- 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, sir. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  --where are they being measured?  

That is, at what point relative to the septic system, and so on?  You are 

trying to test where? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  All of the nitrate levels from the NWIS 

database come from the actual wells.  Those are generally with-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Oh, you’re measuring in the well 

itself -- in the septic system. 
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 MR. HOFFMAN:  In the well--  Well, for the NWIS database.  

For the Private Well Testing Act, there are two locations.  They are 

supposed to come from the place where the water enters the house. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  No, wait, wait; just a minute. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  I’m sorry. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  You said from the well.  Now, the 

well -- are you speaking of the septic system, or are you speaking of a water 

well somewhere? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Water well. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Okay.  And we know where the well 

is related to where the septic system is, or--? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  No.  The Private Well Testing Act is 

required to be anonymous.  The State is not -- the State-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  No, I meant the separation between 

the well and the-- 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Oh, yes.  There are minimum separation 

distances in all towns relating to setbacks from well to septic.  I believe it is 

100 feet. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Okay. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  There are minimum setbacks. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  What you’re testing is how much 

migration there has been from septic systems to a particular well. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  That’s correct.  There is some dilution along 

there; yes. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  And you’re checking in the well 

itself. 
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 MR. HOFFMAN:  Well, for the Private Well Testing Act the 

sampling is done either where the well water hits the house at an intake 

there; or if there’s no water treatment facility in the house -- no water 

softener or anything -- then maybe taking it from a tap.  So it’s not actually 

from the well itself; it’s from some point in the distribution system where it 

has not been affected by any process. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So how are you assured that the septic 

system on the same property with the well -- that the septic system is not 

affecting the nitrate concentration in the well? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  We’re not.  

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 All right, let’s have Mr. Obropta come up from -- Dr. Obropta-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  I do have one more question. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Sure. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, sir. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Your definition of a septic system.  It 

is strictly the system serving one home; thus, if somebody built a system to 

serve multiple homes, that would not be considered a septic system.  Is that 

correct, or what? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  That’s--  Normally, yes.  It’s only one--  For 

the purpose of  the-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Because the proposals that you’re 

putting here about-- 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, it’s for one individual home. 



 

 

 32 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  --you know, so many per acre, etc.  

Thus, if somebody built a septic system to service a number of homes, that 

would not be in compliance with what you’re saying here -- if they built one 

system to service a number of homes. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Correct. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you.  Stick around, everybody. 

 Dr. Chris Obropta, from Rutgers University; the Director of the 

New Jersey Water Resources Institute. 

C H R I S T O P H E R   C.   O B R O P T A,   Ph.D.:  Is this on; can 

you hear me? (referring to PA microphone) 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Push the button. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Push the button so it’s red.  That’s it. 

 DR. OBROPTA:  How’s that, good? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Good. 

 DR. OBROPTA:  So my name is Christopher Obropta; I’m with 

Rutgers University.  I run the Water Resources Research Institute.   

 I’m also an Associate Professor in the Environmental Science 

Department, where I teach Bioenvironmental Engineering.  I’m not sure 

why engineering is in the Environmental Science Department, but that’s the 

way Rutgers does things.  And I’m also the Extension Specialist with 

Rutgers Cooperative Extension in Water Resources.  A big part of my job is 

running around the state trying to extend the knowledge of the University 

out to help the communities solve their water problems.  So, that’s what I 

do. 
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 So Senator Smith had called me up and asked me to look at 

this U.S.G.S. report and kind of give him some comments on it.  So I spent 

a little time doing that. 

 I thought it was interesting that they’re using Private Well 

Testing data.  The nature of that data is that it is in developed areas.  You 

know, the calculations that were originally done for this suggested that you 

needed 88 acre lots to achieve a background concentration of nitrate.  And 

I’ve been to the Highlands; there are not a lot of homes on septics that are 

on 88-acre lots.  So I would expect that the well and the septic are certainly 

-- there’s certainly impact there.  So my question with this was, how can 

you use Private Well Testing data to actually represent background 

conditions? 

 So I guess the question becomes, what is background 

conditions?   And the law wants us to make sure that they’re not degraded  

-- the water quality is not degraded.  So degradation is an interesting thing, 

because if you look at the seven wells that were collected early on -- in the 

forested land, they got a very low concentration.  And my expectation 

would be that if you’re going to develop in the Highlands, you’re either 

going to develop one of two types of land: forested land or agricultural land, 

right?  So when we look at degradation, usually we look at either going back 

to a natural condition -- maintaining a natural condition which, in his case, 

would probably be the forested land; or not having any impact over what 

the existing is.  In which case, the U.S.G.S. report kind of gives you what 

existing conditions are.  So that was, kind of, my thought on this. 

 And I guess what I’m trying to say is, that I think what you can 

do is you can really look at this two ways.  And I think it’s up to the people 
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who wrote this law -- is what you’re trying to achieve.  Are you trying to 

hold that natural condition, in which case it would be that 0.21 milligrams 

per liter of nitrate which they measured in forest lands.   Or are you trying 

to hold the conditions that exist there right now in the Highlands, of 1.77 

milligrams per liter in the areas that they are looking at.  So in that, it 

actually ranged from 0.8 to, I guess, to 1.77 is what I have seen in a report. 

 So I thought about this a little bit and I said, “Well, if you’re 

going to actually develop forested land, and you held that number of 25 

acres, then you’re certainly going to raise the groundwater concentration.  If 

it’s 0.21, you’re going to raise it to 1.77.  So if you consider that degradation, 

then you’re degrading that water.   

 If you developed an agriculture land where I would expect the 

nitrate concentrations to be somewhat higher, because farmers are 

fertilizing their lawn -- and we just had a discussion about grass being 

fertilized in the Barnegat Bay -- it’s the same thing: that nitrogen is making 

its way down to the groundwater.  So I would expect the groundwater under 

farmland to be higher.  So if you want to hold what that existing is, then 

you could probably go to much smaller lots and still maintain that dilution; 

you should be able to achieve that. 

 So I think when you’re looking at this, it’s the definition of 

degradation that you really need to think about.  What I would suggest to 

do would be a couple of things: one, I would put in a caveat here inside this 

law that would allow a developer to actually go out and collect groundwater 

data, so Jeff can have something real to put in his models to get the dilution 

and how big the lots should be.  So there are ways that you can actually go 

out and just measure groundwater data.  We don’t want to do that right 
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now in forested land because the argument is that we’re going to disturb the 

forest; we may create more damage than we would help.  But if somebody is 

going to come in and develop 100 acres of forest land, why not let them 

measure the groundwater and see what the real numbers are, and allow that 

as an option, at least, in the law in addition to having these lot sizes. 

 The other thing that is not being talked about here at all is, 

there’s technology out there that can actually reduce the nitrate coming out 

of septic systems.  We use advanced technologies in stormwater 

management all the time.  We’ve got these hydrodynamic separators and 

we’ve got filters; but we’re not using these at all in septics.  The septic 

system that you’re designing now in the Highlands is the same system that 

we were using 45 years ago -- the system that I have at my house.  So we 

have advanced technologies; technologies have advanced over the years.  

And there are some great systems out there that can actually reduce the 

nitrate coming out up to 70 percent.   

 So why aren’t we allowing people to use that option?  Now, 

granted, that technology would have to be certified and verified.  New 

Jersey DEP actually has a process for that for stormwater, where they have 

an independent group look at the technology, and verify it, and then DEP 

issues a certification that says, “You can use this technology, and here are 

the removal rates they’ll get based on how you’re using it”  So you could do 

the same thing for septics, right?  And that would allow you to have smaller 

lot sizes while still protecting and preserving the water quality, which is 

what we’re trying to do in the beginning.  So that’s kind of the point that I 

had there. 
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 Regarding the numbers being used for the septics -- I think the 

report -- this report, the U.S.G.S. report did exactly what it said it was going 

to do.  It calculated the background concentrations, and I think the 

regression analysis is appropriate.  I think U.S.G.S. did a good job on this.  

The question becomes, are these the numbers we should be using to 

determine what we want to meet as background conditions? 

 In the end, the numbers you’re coming up with are 0.8, 1.7 

milligrams per liter of nitrate.  The criteria -- the drinking water criteria is 

10.  So you’re way under the criteria to begin with.  So the question does 

become, do you want to call degradation as not violating that overall average, 

or not violating -- not exceeding the concentration that’s on the existing lot?  

And that’s the question for you, as law makers, to determine, I think. 

 Questions?   

 You don’t seem happy, Senator Smith; sorry.    

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well-- 

 DR. OBROPTA:  Was it all right? (laughter) 

 SENATOR SMITH:  No, no, no.  I never look happy under any 

circumstances. (laughter) 

 I think you had two terrific suggestions in there -- one being 

that any development be site-specific; that the developing entity has to 

measure the groundwater nitrate concentration, and then you can make a 

rational decision about going forward.   

 And I love the idea about the advanced technology on septic 

systems.  Who sets the standards for septic systems? 

 DR. OBROPTA:  Well, there’s a Chapter 199 regulation that 

was written many years ago that hasn’t been changed over the years.  But 
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it’s a standard that New Jersey has developed over the years to design septic 

systems; and we’ve been using that same design standard for years.  I used 

to design septic systems a long time ago, and it’s the same as it was back 

then. 

 There are places like Rhode Island -- the professor I worked 

closely with up at the University of Rhode Island -- where they have very 

small lots, and they are right on the ocean, or they’re right near a lake -- and 

they’re using some of these advanced technologies to keep the nitrogen out 

of those water bodies.  And they are very effective; they’re tested, they’re 

proven.  It’s not -- they’re not hokey technologies; they’re proven 

technologies, so it’s something we should consider.  The only question, 

though, becomes, a lot these technologies require energy, so there has to be 

a pump circulating.  So when you install the technology, there’s a good 

chance the homeowner can say, “Well, you know, I don’t want to pay that 

electric bill,” and they can turn it off and just let it be -- go back to being a 

regular system where the pump’s not functioning and it won’t get the 

nitrogen removal.  So what people have done was they have put 

telecommunications devices on there that go to the Department of Health, 

and they can see on the screen if they turned off their pump, you know, and 

they can go out and make sure they have it on.  So there are ways we can 

check that.  There are always bad players in the area, but I think advanced 

technology is something we really should be considering. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Let me ask Mr. Cantor from the DEP. 

 Has the DEP thought about changing your regulations on 

septics, especially in the Highlands? 



 

 

 38 

 MR. CANTOR: (off mike)  We have not specifically considered 

that, especially as it relates -- 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  He has to come up-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  You have to come up to the mike, Ray. 

 DR. OBROPTA:  Oh, I’m sorry. 

 MR. CANTOR:  No, we have not specifically considered that as 

related to this specific rule. 

 As I mentioned before, the idea of a septic density standard is 

to look at not only nitrates, but -- nitrate is just a pollutant.  We also look 

at the cumulative and secondary effects of development.  So we’re not --

nitrates going in at a certain percentage is only part of the equation.  

Having advanced systems may, in the sense, prevent nitrate from going into 

the groundwater; but nitrate is not a driving factor, as was just mentioned.  

We’re well below the health standard, we’re well below the--  Again, we 

think we’re being very protective of existing conditions in the Highlands 

area.  Again, as was mentioned as well, if you’re developing in a farmland, 

you’re probably actually improving the water quality from a nitrate 

perspective. 

 But the purpose of using nitrate as a surrogate in a septic 

density model is to prevent development from a larger scale.  So again, 

having an advanced system has not been the driving factor.  Having less 

development and all its secondary impacts -- impervious cover, fertilizer, 

human activity -- is the driving factor that we’re trying to achieve. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, the problem, you know-- 

 DR. OBROPTA:  Can I speak to that before you go on? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, please; go ahead. 
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 DR. OBROPTA:  Because, you know, we’re talking about -- 

you’re talking about limiting development; I thought we were talking about 

maintaining water quality. 

 I’ve been doing stormwater management for years, and we can 

put a system in place to mitigate all those other factors.  So we can make 

the asphalt driveway porous asphalt; we can build rain guards to treat 

stormwater runoff; we can minimize the impacts so there is virtually no 

runoff from smaller storms from these developments.  So there are ways 

that we can address those other concerns.  But the nitrate from the septic is 

what I thought we were here to really talk about. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  By the way, you’ve now answered your 

own question -- about why Rutgers puts engineering with the environment. 

 DR. OBROPTA:  There you go. (laughter)  Thanks. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So, in any case, the policy issue is 

degradation -- how do we, as lawmakers, and the people who passed the 

Highlands Act, believe what the definition of degradation should be.  And 

the thing that--  And I’ll give Ray--  And there are more witnesses, I think, 

who Ray may have.  The thing that is somewhat disturbing is the concept 

that the well testing data is not necessarily representative of the Highlands 

aquifer -- the reason being it’s from sites that have development and septic.  

And therefore, they probably have a higher concentration of nitrates -- as I 

understand the testimony -- a higher concentration of nitrates than, 

perhaps, what really is the correct, or true, or scientifically valid 

representation as demonstrated by the seven wells -- the seven well data, 

which is roughly one-eighth of the nitrate concentration; which, I think you 

said was 0.2 compared to 1.7. 
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 DR. OBROPTA:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Something like that. 

 So that’s where the rubber is hitting the road on this. 

 But we’re going to have more testimony.  And if you would like 

to stick around and you hear something really that needs a comment, we’d 

love to hear from you. 

 And Ray, I think you also had -- your request was to have 

somebody from the Farm Bureau as a witness, correct? 

 MR. CANTOR:  Well, again, that was when I thought--  Well, 

again, we are looking for scientific data. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 MR. CANTOR:  And the Farm Bureau did present when they 

challenged our rule of scientific data.  So I just recommended that they may 

have something to offer. 

 But could I just make a couple of quick comments-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  You sure can. 

 MR. CANTOR:  --on what was just said before? 

 Again, I just want to make the distinction--  And I think the 

Doctor did make this distinction as to what we’re looking at. 

 We are looking at existing nitrate conditions in the Highlands 

Preservation Area and trying to maintain that.  We are not looking at a 

pristine level of Highlands and trying to get to a pristine level.  We’re trying 

to maintain existing conditions and improve them where we can. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right.  

 MR. CANTOR:  If we had a pristine standard that any 

development you’re going to add there is going to impact that pristine 
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standard, you then basically have a no-development type of threshold; 

unless you went to, as you mentioned, a higher quality septic system to 

prevent nitrate.  But again, we’re looking at this to protect existing water 

quality. 

 As to the point on--  Well, again, you mentioned on 

representing -- they’re not being represented because it’s skewed to 

developed areas; I won’t comment on that.  I think the U.S.G.S. is going to 

have a much more informed statement than we do.  But we believe that the 

regression analysis does predict nitrate levels in those more pristine areas.   

 And on the issue of using site-specific data, we went to our 

Science Advisory Board, I believe, back in 2010 -- it may have been 2011 or 

so -- and asked them the question of whether or not using the Trela-

Douglas model and nitrate as a surrogate for pollutant is an appropriate 

methodology to protect the Highlands from a septic density standard.  And 

they said, “Yes, it is, but only on a regional basis.”  They said we should not 

be using it on a site-specific standard.  Where it may be -- where you can do 

a site-specific--  Again, if you’re doing it that way, you should be doing it for 

the health standard to make sure that the well water is protected from a 

health perspective.  But from a regional planning perspective, they 

recommended us against using a site-specific standard -- using a 

groundwater under that site -- and recommended a regional approach, 

which is what we went with. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Good.  Now, you mentioned the U.S.G.S. 

is present.  And I didn’t have them on the witness list, but I would love to 

hear from the U.S.G.S. 
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 DR. OBROPTA:  There is actually something in their report 

here -- I’m on page 14 -- it talks about “overrepresentation of urban and, 

possibly, agriculture areas; and underrepresentation of forest areas in the 

combined NWIS/PWTA database must therefore result in higher median 

nitrate concentrations for all water samples than the actual median 

concentration of groundwater underlying the entire Highlands region.”  So 

they recognize, in their report-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  There’s a limitation on the data. 

 DR. OBROPTA:  --that because their data was Private Well 

Testing data, that it may be skewed to the higher end.  So that’s already -- 

they already accounted for that in their report 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay.  So let’s hear from the U.S.G.S.  

Who-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, sir; Senator. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  There’s something I missed 

somewhere here -- again, we talked about the well data, and so on.  How we 

translate the available well data to the conclusions that one in each 23 acres 

in a certain area, one in 12 acres in another area, and so on -- how that well 

data determines how many acres are suitable in the given area, etc.  I missed 

how we get to that point. 

 MR. CANTOR:  I could explain, but I would rather have Mr. 

Hoffman come back and really explain it to you. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Thus, because you also mentioned 

while we’re in a pristine area and we’re trying to keep it pristine -- that 
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would be one thing.  But we’re not in a pristine area, we’re just trying to 

maintain it. 

 MR. CANTOR:  Well, of course; and again-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  And you make some changes--  

There are going to be changes; it’s not going to be exactly what it was. 

 MR. CANTOR:  Which is why we don’t use the term background 

or pristine.  We use the term the existing conditions and maintaining the 

existing conditions 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Well, that’s what I’m saying.  You 

said, okay, we go to existing conditions.  But if you’re going to make some 

changes and going to add some more nitrate in, there’s going to be a 

change.  So what are you determining that will be acceptable?  I mean, you 

make a change, you can’t be exactly the same; there are going to be changes. 

 MR. CANTOR:  Jeff, you want to explain that? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:   (off mike)  Sure, I’ll try. 

 I’ll go back, first, to the underlying model, the Trela-Douglas 

model.  This was developed in the 1970s and first applied to the New Jersey 

Pinelands.  It’s a very simple model, in the sense that it looks at -- assumes 

that the nitrate that’s in the groundwater -- all that comes from your septic 

system.  So it uses an estimate of how many pounds per person comes into 

the system from each person -- how many pounds per year; how much 

dilution occurs on the lot; and then how much -- what target are you trying 

to reach at the end.   

 If you can imagine a bottle of water, and let’s say you want to 

dilute -- you want this to be dark green when you’re done.  How many 

drops of dark green can you put in? 
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 SENATOR THOMPSON:  I’m a Ph.D. Chemist; you don’t 

have to get too simple for me. (laughter) 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  I’m sorry; okay.  Thank you for that. 

 So it’s a basic -- just a dilution model -- inputs, outputs -- and 

the question is what is the output concentration?  What is the nitrate target 

you’re trying to reach if only the nitrate load is from the septic system of 

the house?  We’re limiting it to that, and the only recharge comes from 

what infiltrates on your lot.  You only have to dilute the nitrate that you’re 

generating yourself. 

 But that target then becomes the important question.  What is 

the appropriate target for the area?  In the Pinelands, back in the 1970s, 

they chose a value of 2 milligrams per liter; and the zoning that was done 

should result in an average groundwater concentration, from the septic 

loads, of 2 on a regional basis. 

 In the Highlands, the approach has evolved over time.  When 

this was first done, we looked at forested and nonforested to try and figure 

out what’s in the purely forested areas and in the nonforested areas.  

What’s the current nitrate in those areas?  And we developed that -- how 

much land do we have to encompass-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  I don’t mean to cut you short; I  

just want to see if my thoughts are what you’re going to say. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Please. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  That based upon the amount of 

load that you found in the well from the septic system, you’re calculating 

how much land it would take to reduce this amount of load down to the 

levels that you’re seeking.  
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 MR. HOFFMAN:  Right. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Is that okay? 

 And that came up, in certain areas, to 23 acres; and other areas 

to 12 acres, and so on.  Is that correct? 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  That’s correct. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Okay; I got my answer then. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Good. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right, let me ask the U.S.G.S. to come 

forward; and we would love to hear the benefit of your wisdom. 

R I C H A R D   H.   K R O P P:  Mr. Chairman and members of the 

Committee, we appreciate the opportunity to come before you today and 

talk about the studies we’ve done in the Highlands. 

 I have with me today Ron Baker, who is the author of the 

report.  So if there are any specific questions on the report, Ron is here to 

be able to address those. 

 I will give you a little background as to the U.S.G.S. role. 

 The Highlands and the New Jersey Department of 

Environmental Protection contracted with the U.S. Geological Survey to 

determine the median concentration of nitrate within the Highlands and its 

subregions. The median is the central tendency measure of choice when 

data is not normally distributed, and where there are a few extreme values 

that may strongly affect the mean.  These conditions are characteristic of 

water quality data, and median concentrations are often reported and used 

in regulatory and other purposes. 
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 The simplest method of estimating the media concentration of 

well water contaminants would be to calculate the median concentration 

among all the available data from the wells sampled in the area of interest.  

However, such an estimate of a median tends to be biased, as the wells are 

not randomly or uniformly distributed geographically, and they tend to be 

located near areas of human activity.  This would include urban, residential, 

agriculture, and other developed areas.  Therefore, undeveloped areas, and 

areas that are served by water sources other than a well, would be 

underrepresented in the density of the well data.  If the objective is to 

determine the median concentration underlying the entire area of interest, 

this bias must be counterbalanced in some way. 

 In the Highlands study, the U.S.G.S. developed a method to 

minimize bias and estimate median concentrations in areas without well 

water data.  This was accomplished by relating those nitrate concentrations, 

measured over the past 15 years, to quantitative land use variables; and 

using those relations to estimate the median concentration in areas where 

the nitrate data was not available.  Logistic regression is a nonparametric 

which relates to probability of an outcome to one or more explanatory 

variables, and used to develop those relationships.   The method was used 

to estimate median nitrate concentrations for the current conditions in the 

subregions of the New Jersey Highlands. 

 The initial study of the New Jersey Highlands Council, which 

was completed in 2008, included estimates of median concentrations 

consistent with the available nitrate data from the U.S.G.S. National Water 

Information System -- NWIS; you’ve heard that used a couple of times.  At 

the time, there were only 352 wells with nitrate concentrations in our 
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NWIS database for the Highlands that were appropriate for the study.  

Upon review of the U.S.G.S., DEP and the Highlands Council recognized 

that using additional nitrate values from the Private Well Testing Act would 

improve the nitrate estimates in 2012.  The U.S.G.S. repeated the statistical 

amylasei, using both the Private Well Testing data and the NWIS data, 

which consisted of over 19,000 wells.  The results of this analysis are in our 

published report. 

 We welcome the opportunity to provide further information to 

assist the Committee in your deliberations.  And we’re here to answer any 

questions that you have about our study. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So tell me about the 352 wells. 

 MR. KROPP:  Okay. 

 Those were in NWIS.  So NWIS is a database in which the 

U.S.G.S. goes out and collects information from existing wells around the 

country.  And when it goes into the NWIS database, we want information 

on that well: where is it exactly located, how deep it is, what is the 

construction of that well, and all that.  It’s all the metadata that goes into 

the database. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Are they--  The 352 -- are they across the 

country, or are they in New Jersey? 

 MR. KROPP:  No, this is just in the Highlands. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Just in the Highlands. 

 MR. KROPP:  Yes, yes; this is just in the Highlands. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So suppose you took the 352 only-- 

 MR. KROPP:  We did that. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  --how does your median nitrate number 

come out? 

R O N A L D   J.   B A K E R,   Ph.D.:  Well, that’s what was done for the 

original study which was used for the original Highlands Master Plan.  And 

we did come up with reasonable numbers.  But everyone realized, at the 

time, that it really wasn’t enough data to properly represent the entire 

Highlands.  It’s a very large area to be represented by only 352 wells.  And 

as has been mentioned previously, only seven of these wells represent a 

natural condition.   

 So it’s been clear from the start that it would be beneficial to 

have a larger well data set to better calculate the median concentration. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, just to get back to the question.   

The 352 -- is that where the DEP had the original number of the 88 acres? 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 DR. BAKER:  That’s my understanding. 

B I L L   W O L F E:  (off mike)  Natural conditions. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right.  Is that correct? 

 MR. WOLFE: (off mike)  Based on natural conditions. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  (off mike)  No; 

close, but almost. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Close, but almost.  All right. 

 So Dr. Obropta read the disclaimer in your report-- 

 MR. KROPP:  Yes. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  --that the nitrate concentrations will be 

affected in the 19,000 data points because they’re on developed property. 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes.  I would like to address that. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Please. 

 DR. BAKER:  Dr. Obropta was accurate in saying that, on page 

14, we clearly stated that if you take the median value of all of the actual 

data collected in that database, the number probably will be higher than the 

actual median concentration because these wells are located in developed 

areas and are clustered around homes and neighborhoods. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 DR. BAKER:  That’s why we did this study in the first place.  

We wanted to, as much as possible, reduce the geographical and spatial 

bias.  So in our regression model, we used variables such as percent 

agriculture, percent urban, septic density, known contamination sites, and 

sole length of streams.  We used a number of variables that are related to 

nitrate concentration to create a model which we can apply to areas that 

didn’t have any development, so that we could reduce the bias and better 

represent the forested and nondeveloped areas in the model.  And, in fact, 

that did considerably reduce the median nitrate concentration in the two 

areas and in the three usability zones. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, you need to give me some -- maybe 

orders of magnitude, or some way in which to put this in perspective. 

 As I understand what you’re saying -- and everybody’s welcome 

to correct me if I have this way wrong -- is that because there’s a lack of 

data, we’re going to take the existing data that has some bias and then try 

to put some factors on it to reduce the bias. 
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 MR. KROPP:  Right. 

 DR. BAKER:  That’s correct. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So let me ask you the question.  If you 

didn’t do this model, if you had the 19,000 data points, and said, “Okay, I 

just want the median,”  what density would result then? 

 MR. KROPP:  We didn’t analyze that. 

 DR. BAKER:  No, we weren’t really part of that process.  Our 

role was to provide a median concentration, and the rest of the process was 

done by-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, a best-guess, median concentration, 

because it’s not based on actual-- 

 MR. KROPP:  Well, it’s an estimate.  So the quote that Dr. 

Obropta came up with was, if you took the median values of the data and 

just used those, you would have a bias because those wells are only located 

where there is human activity. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 MR. KROPP:  Because of that, what he didn’t say was then we 

did the regression analysis.  To remove that geographic bias is why you do a 

regression analysis, okay? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  How much did the number change? 

 MR. KROPP:  From--? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  If you did the 19,000 data points-- 

 MR. KROPP:  Just straight median? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --without trying to adjust for bias, what’s 

the nitrate number then, compared to the nitrate number with the 

regression analysis? 
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 DR. BAKER:  It is stated in the report what it would be with 

just the data and with removing the bias in a few different ways.   

 SENATOR SMITH:  And by the way, do we have--  We have 

the report, right? 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes. 

 MR. KROPP:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Can we enter that into this record? 

 MR. KROPP:  Sure. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right.  When the Legislature 

ultimately looks at this issue, they should have everything they can on it. 

 And by the way, I didn’t mention this at the beginning of this 

hearing -- everybody is welcome to participate in the record.  So if you have 

-- you’re listening to some of our scientific experts, if you have additional 

information that you think the Legislature needs to look at, you want to 

send it to Judy Horowitz at OLS and then it will be added on to this 

transcript that the Legislature will have.  Because I think, as everybody in 

the audience can realize, this is not an easy issue, all right?  It is 

scientifically complex, all right? 

 MR. KROPP:  We have the report. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  It’s in the report; if you wouldn’t mind-- 

 DR. BAKER:  And I have this information. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 DR. BAKER:  The median of all of the individual samples was 

1.79 milligrams per liter nitrate as nitrogen. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So that’s the 19,600-- 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes, the median of all those values-- 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  --plus the 352. 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes. 

 MR. KROPP:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Every well tested; okay. 

 DR. BAKER:  And the calculated median, after we did the 

regression analysis, was 1.25 milligrams per liter. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  And that’s the number that’s being used-- 

 DR. BAKER:  For the overall the Highlands. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --for the density. 

 DR. BAKER:  And there’s a table in the report that shows the 

Planning Area, Preservation Area, and Conservation Zone; and all of the 

combinations of a zone and area, and how those numbers changed when 

you did the regression.  I wouldn’t want to read through all these-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  No, please. (laughter) 

 DR. BAKER:  In virtually all cases, the concentration is reduced 

when we include information about septic density, and agriculture, and 

urban land use. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right.  And if you used just the seven 

wells, what’s the number? 

 DR. BAKER:  We didn’t really do that part of the study.  But I 

believe it was 2-point--  It was just over 2 millgrams-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  It was 0.2? 

 MR. WOLFE: (off mike)  It was 0.21. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  It was 0.21. 

 MR. KROPP:  It was 0.21. 

 DR. BAKER:  It was 0.21?  Or 0.21; that’s right. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  So our three numbers are 0.21, if it’s the 

seven wells; 1.7-and-change if you use the 19,600; and 1.25 if you do the 

regression analysis to try and take out the bias. 

 MR. KROPP:  But they are different areas.  The seven wells was 

only the forested area. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 MR. KROPP:  So the 19,000 was the entire region.  So you’re 

not comparing apples to apples there, is what I’m saying, okay? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 All right; questions for the U.S.G.S.?  Anybody have questions 

for the U.S.G.S.? (no response) 

 Okay, thank you very much. 

 MR. KROPP:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  We have John Thonet, Thonet Associates. 

 Mr. Thonet.   

 Could you give us the benefit of your background? 

J O H N   A.   T H O N E T:  Yes, my name is John Thonet; I’m a private 

environmental planning consultant.  I have a Bachelor of Science degree 

and a Master of Science degree from the State University College of 

Environmental Science and Forestry at Syracuse University.  That’s a dual 

major in Forestry or Environmental Science, and Civil Engineering. 

 I’ve been in practice for myself since 1980; I’ve been working 

for 44 years.  My specialty is environmental planning and engineering 

design for land development projects and land use planning programs. 

 Certainly the Highlands Act Regional Master Plan is a great 

example of a planning program that would be of great interest to me and, 
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indeed, was.  So I’ve been following the program since its inception.  And, 

in fact, I submitted voluminous comments during the Regional Master Plan 

review, specifically on the issue that we’re talking about here tonight; but 

really on all of the water resources-related issues.  So the files of the 

Highlands Council are filled with volumes of paper from me on that. 

 The reason I presume I was asked to come here and testify is 

because I continued my involvement in this process professionally, because 

I was interested; but also because at the time that this study was prepared, I 

was the President of the Board of Trustees of the New Jersey Highlands 

Coalition.  And in July -- late July of 2015, Mr. Cantor and Mr. Hoffman of 

the DEP invited the New Jersey Highlands Coalition, together with many 

other environmental groups, to a meeting in Trenton where they provided a 

presentation -- quite similar to the presentation they made to you today -- 

for the benefit of all the environmental organizations so that they would 

understand what was coming -- that, “These were changes, there had been a 

new study, and we just want to give you a heads-up.  These are the answers 

that we’re planning on using.”  And that was about a year-and-a-half ago;  

that was July 30, I think, of 2015. 

 And I sat at that meeting, and I immediately noticed that the-- 

I always look at the forested areas, because that’s the most important thing 

in the Preservation Area.  There are more forests than anything else; and, in 

fact, if you take the forested areas, together with the wetlands and the 

streams, those areas constitute 75 percent of the Preservation Area in which 

they have precious few wells, even today.  Even with adding 19,000 wells 

from the Private Well Testing Act, they still have precious few wells within 

that 75 percent of the Preservation Area. 
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 And so when I looked and I saw that within the forested areas 

the estimated existing nitrate levels were five times what the measured 

nitrate levels were in the original studies by U.S.G.S, it sounded like there 

was something wrong.  And just to give you an idea:  In a pristine area -- 

and we know the Highlands isn’t totally pristine, but there are large areas 

that come close -- but in a pristine area in New Jersey, a forested area, you 

would expect nitrate levels on the order of 0.1 milligrams per liter, or about 

one-tenth what this model estimates.   

 Now, when they did the original studies in 2008, they did not 

use 0.1 for all of those areas.  Through their modeling, they came up with 

0.2, and that’s what they used.  But again, that’s only one-fifth of what the 

estimated values are by this study. 

 That just gave me doubt.  That didn’t say, “Oh, no, this is 

wrong.”  But I’m sitting at a meeting, and I’m just flipping through the 

report, and that’s the first thing that popped out -- that these numbers are 

really different. 

 So I said, “You know, I’m not going to just wing this and 

provide comments off the cuff.  I want to review this study in detail and 

submit comments.”  And Mr. Cantor and Mr. Hoffman were quite nice 

about that, and they said, “Absolutely; be our guest.  We’d love to have 

your comments.”  So I submitted them. 

 About a month later, September 1 -- and I have a package of 

everything I will talk about today; I have a package, and I am going to give 

it to you so you can read it at your leisure.  I would have sent it earlier, 

actually, but since I just found out I was invited a few days ago, I didn’t -- 

and I was traveling and had business, I didn’t have time to send it in 
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advance.  But I will leave it with you so that you’ll have all the background 

information on everything I’m talking about today. 

 At any rate, I prepared a memorandum to Jeff Hoffman -- as I 

was, in fact, invited to do by the DEP -- and in that first memorandum I 

said, “You know, Jeff, the big problem I have is in your original studies you 

treated the Preservation Area as a separate entity, and the Planning Area as 

a separate entity.  And I thought that was appropriate.  But now you’ve 

combined them all, and you’re using the entire Highlands region to do a 

regression analysis to predict not only what the nitrate levels would be 

where you don’t have wells in the Planning Area; but what it would be in 

the Preservation Area, in those areas where you don’t really have data now.” 

 And the Preservation Area is significantly different than the 

Planning Area.  I just told you; I’m not making this up.  This comes out of 

the Regional Master Plan; it comes out of the actual reports that I have with 

me tonight that are prepared by the Department of Environmental 

Protection -- 75 percent is forests, wetlands, and water -- streams.  There are 

very few wells in those areas.  You know, under the Private Well Testing 

Act -- what happens is when you sell a property you have to test the well 

and send the data in.  I know; I bought a house in 2003, and I had to 

comply because it became effective in September 2002.   

 SENATOR SMITH:  So Dr. Thonet -- to make sure I’m 

understanding your testimony correctly -- you’re saying that the proposed 

rule has a density requirement that goes across the board, both Planning 

and Preservation. 

 MR. THONET:  Right. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  And it’s your opinion that the 

Preservation Area should have a different septic density, because it is a 

different area with different groundwater values that shouldn’t be using the 

nitrate data from the Planning Area. 

 MR. THONET:  Correct.  If you did a regression analysis just 

in the Preservation Area, you would find that it’s most closely related to 

how much development there is, versus how much undevelopment there is.  

So in other words, it would be related to forests, it would be related to 

wetlands.  Those are not-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I got it. 

 MR. THONET:  Okay. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Let me ask you to stop for a second. 

 Let me ask U.S.G.S. -- is it possible to do the regression analysis 

separating the two areas so that it’s not across the board on a septic density 

standard? 

 DR. BAKER:  (off mike)  It is possible-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  If you would stand up-- 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Come forward. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --and come to the microphone, too, if it’s 

okay; just so that it gets recorded. 

 MR. WOLFE: (off mike)  The law requires the Preservation 

Area to be (indiscernible).  It only applies in the Preservation Area. 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes, I think we need to keep in mind that the 

groundwater does not care about the political boundaries; it cares more 

about the lithology, the precipitation, the environment that it is in.  And so 



 

 

 58 

we used all values from the Highland physiographic province -- which is 

pretty much consistent with the physiographic region -- and it is 

appropriate to use all of the data to create the most strong model that you 

can, because more data gives you more power of statistics.  So it is 

appropriate to use all of that data, and then apply it to the different areas 

independently. 

 And in the report, there is a table showing what the median 

concentration is for each area and for each Capability Land Zone (sic), and 

land use, and the combination of those two. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right.  But the problem is, as I 

understand it from Dr. Thonet, is that-- 

 MR. THONET:  I’m not a doctor.   

 SENATOR SMITH:  Oh, what are you?  You’re a Master, 

right?  You have Master’s degrees. 

 MR. THONET:  Although people do call me a doctor, but that’s 

just because I fix things. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right; sorry about that. (laughter) 

 So in any case, the question--  I understand your point about 

more data.  But you have this area of forested area that’s, according to Mr. 

Thonet, 75 percent of the Preservation Area, roughly.  And that the same 

standards that you have on the Planning Area or on the well testing -- the 

19,000 data points -- shouldn’t be used to set the density for that area. 

 DR. BAKER:  Well, both areas have a mix of urban, ag, and 

forest land. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 
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 DR. BAKER:  Yes, the one area has more urban and the other 

has less. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 DR. BAKER:  But that all goes into the model. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right; I appreciate the comment. 

 DR. BAKER:  The other thing is that we are not estimating 

median concentration for a forested area.  We are estimating them as we 

were asked to do -- for the different areas with regions. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  How many different regions did you end 

up with? 

 DR. BAKER:  Well, there are -- it’s the Land Use Capability 

Zones; there are three of them.  There’s the Planning Area and the 

Preservation Areas, as we know; and there’s the Conservation Zone, the 

Existing Community Zone, and the Protection Zone.  So we have median 

concentrations for each of those areas and zones, and for each area/zone 

combination. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay; thank you very much.  We 

appreciate your comments. 

 Would you like to finish your testimony, if there’s anything 

else? 

 MR. THONET:  Absolutely. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Go ahead. 

 MR. THONET:  I, of course, disagree with that philosophy.  

Regression analysis is always best when you apply it just to the area that 

you’re concerned with and just for the land attributes of that area. 
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 This study is totally underrepresented in the forest areas.  Yes, 

in the entire Highlands we have forests, but in the Preservation Area -- 

which is the most important area to protect -- it’s overwhelmingly forested.  

So it’s underrepresented in this study, which is why you’re getting such 

tremendously different answers.  They have developed a regression analysis 

to predict what would be in a forested area because they have some forested 

areas throughout the entire Planning Area -- in the entire Highlands region.  

But they’re underrepresented.  And if you look at the contributing factors 

that they look at to decide what these nitrate levels are, forests aren’t even 

one of them, okay? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. THONET:  So that’s an important part.  But I continued 

my conversation with Jeff Hoffman who, at that time, was responding to 

my comments.  And I said, “Jeff, you know, it sounds to me like you’re 

trying to predict using Planning Area data in the Preservation Area.”  I said, 

“I don’t think you have as many of these private wells in the Preservation 

zone.”  And Jeffrey said, “No, you’re wrong,” and he was correct; he sent me 

the data.  And they actually have a similar number of wells in both the 

Planning Area and the Preservation Area; in fact, a little more in the 

Preservation Area, which I found interesting. 

 But that’s the data, and that doesn’t lie.  So there are plenty of 

wells available in the Preservation Area.  But of course, they’re not in the 

forests; they’re not in the 75 percent that you’re trying to estimate nitrates 

for.   



 

 

 61 

 So yes, they could do a separate study; but it would still have 

the same bias because those wells -- there are very few wells in the forested 

area. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. THONET:  And, I believe that both the U.S.G.S. and 

DEP have testified to that today. 

 So my main reason for asking that they do it separately was to 

get a better answer.  And the reason you want a better answer is, this is -- 

we talked about degradation.  This is a nondegradation zone.  We don’t 

have to guess what that means.  This is not a policy decision.  The Senate 

doesn’t get to say, “Nondegradation means no degradation; none.” 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Actually, we did get to say.  We put it in 

the Highlands Act. 

 MR. THONET:  Well, you did get to say. (laughter)  Actually, 

the Senate gets to say whatever they like. (laughter) 

 MR. TITTEL: (off mike)  Now, you have to enforce it. 

(laughter) 

 MR. THONET:  But I think the important thing is, it’s in the 

rules.  Nondegradation means no degradation-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. THONET:  --and we heard a very good explanation as to 

how that works.  At the point of the septic, you’re not violating the target.  

So that’s how that works. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. THONET:  Anyway, Jeff wrote back to me and we settled 

these issues about how many wells were in which place and so forth.  But it 
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didn’t change my mind about the fact that you need to do a separate 

Preservation model.  And I had also said you have to get more data in the 

undeveloped forested areas, wetland areas.  You need to go in and do some 

actual sampling -- put some points there to get real numbers, because you 

don’t really have enough.  And that was a comment that I had with regard 

to their original 2008 study-- is that they really should go in and get some 

data.  And Jeff did respond, and he said, “It’s too expensive.”  And I have 

my letter -- the letter from Jeffrey Hoffman to me responding to my first 

memorandum to him, and that’s what he says. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Great. 

 MR. THONET:  Now, the other thing that I have to share with 

you is that in my first memorandum I also noted that I have a study here, 

done by Jeffrey Hoffman, and it’s dated 2014.  And when I read this -- 

because while I’m reading this new study, it sounded awfully like the one I 

had read about a year earlier.  And I read it, and it is the same study.  It’s 

the same analysis done by the U.S.G.S. in the same year with totally 

different answers. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  What do you mean, “Totally different 

answers”? 

 MR. THONET:  Completely different answers. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  What do you -- give me an example of the 

totally different answers. 

 MR. THONET:  (laughter)  Okay.  And I also have it in 

writing, and I’ll submit it to you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Good. 
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 MR. THONET:  So in September of last year -- let’s see; all 

right.  The 2014 study’s results are significantly different from the 2015 

study’s results, both of which were prepared by U.S.G.S. and DEP just one 

year earlier using the identical database.  For example, the 2015 study 

reports a median nitrate concentration of 1.05 milligrams per liter for the 

Protection Zone within the Preservation Area, more than 10 times greater 

than the median concentration reported in 2014. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Stop. 

 Mr. Hoffman, what’s the story here? 

 Turn on your mike; turn off your mike. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  It is on; okay. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  The U.S.G.S. was working on the database 

and developing a model, like Mr. Thonet says.  They provided a preliminary 

answer to me in 2014.  That preliminary answer had not been peer 

reviewed and had not been approved by U.S.G.S. for publication. 

 I was -- I inappropriately took those results and put them into 

the first version of the report I wrote.  I can provide you with the final 

version.  But the bottom line is, I took preliminary unreviewed U.S.G.S. 

results and used them in a report.  As when the U.S.G.S. model went 

through further review, through the SAB, Science Advisory Board process, 

and through the peer review process, we discovered a numerical error in 

their analysis for the preliminary results.  They corrected that in the final 

report.  So the final report went through peer review. 

 After they corrected it, I revised my report, which estimated 

septic zonings based upon the results, and changed my original report. 
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 Mr. Thonet has a copy of both my first one using the 

erroneous, superseded results, and the final.   

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. HOFFMAN:  He’s comparing the two. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it,  got it.  Okay. 

 U.S.G.S., again. 

 Just confirmation that that’s your recollection of the event as 

well. 

 DR. BAKER:  Yes, that is correct.  We had just really started 

working with the Private Well Testing Act, did some calculations, and had 

some correspondence with DEP.  And they apparently took that to be a 

final version and ran with it, basically.  But we really weren’t -- hadn’t 

completed the work and hadn’t sent it through any review process. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it.  We appreciate that. 

 Okay, so Mr. Thonet, I-- 

 MR. THONET:  It’s relevant. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I’m surrounded by conspiracy theories 

every day. (laughter) 

 MR. THONET:  No, no. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  And in the environment, more than any 

other area. 

 MR. THONET:  No, it’s relevant; it tied in with my other 

testimony. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Go to another point, if you have any 

others. 

 MR. THONET:  Okay. 
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 At any rate, Jeff did tell me that story, and I was about to tell 

the same story. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 MR. THONET:  He told me he put it up on, I think, 

September 8, 2015; and pulled it down on September 10. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay.  So next-- 

 MR. THONET:  So apparently I and everyone else who has the 

study-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. THONET:  --went to the web page on those two days. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  The first one was wrong; got it. 

 The next point, if there are more. 

 MR. THONET:  There are more. 

 So Jeff told me the story about the fact that the U.S.G.S. had 

made a mistake.  Okay; that’s good.  They did the study in 2012; and in 

2014, in the process of redoing this, they said that -- Jeff said that--  No, the 

U.S.G.S. said that the Department had asked them to prepare this in a final 

form, in a scientific investigative report; and in the process of going through 

that review, discovered that there had been an error.  Well, the error totally 

changed the results.  So now I had two reports with the same date, only one 

doesn’t have any markings on it other than “this is the report;” and the 

other is another one that says Revised September 2015; Preliminary, Subject to 

Revision.”  And I have that for you too.  And the answers are totally 

different, because those answers now agree with the answers in the 

U.S.G.S.’s new report. 
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 So I wrote another memo, and basically asked why.  And Jeff 

provided the U.S.G.S.’s explanation.  And I have a letter from Mr. Kropp; 

it’s undated.  I don’t know why it’s undated, but it is the letter that explains 

to Mr. Hoffman what happened.  But it does more than that.  It also goes 

back to the 2008 study, and it says that in 2008--  These are the nitrate 

levels that we’ve been regulating with for the last eight years, okay?  We 

based it all on the U.S.G.S. study from 2008.  And what Mr. Kropp says is, 

in 2008, the U.S.G.S. submitted a draft report to the New Jersey Highlands 

Council which included estimates of median nitrate concentrations 

consistent with the available nitrate data from the U.S.G.S. National Water 

Information System.  At that time, there were only 352 wells, with a nitrate 

concentration in the NWIS database for the Highlands that were 

appropriate for this study. 

 Now, of course, the first thing I knew when I looked at this is, 

“Well, that’s not right.”  Because obviously, the Private Well Testing Act 

was passed in 2001; effective in 2002; and I was subject to it, as a brand-

new homeowner, in 2003.  So certainly by 2008, when the original study 

was done, they had several years of data.  And remember, the study you’re 

looking it only has 10 years of the Private Well Testing data; this could 

have had four or five years of data. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So they didn’t have that data in that 

original letter.  This has been an ongoing and evolving process.  What is the 

point? 

 MR. THONET:  Well, the point is that in all of the studies in 

everything published by the Highlands Council in their original Master 

Plan, in the letters from U.S.G.S., in the reports from both U.S.G.S. and 
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from DEP, they repeatedly say that the 2008 studies were based on the best 

available data.  Clearly they have changed their mind; they had thousands 

of additional wells available-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 MR. THONET:  --that they, at that time, for whatever reason, 

didn’t consider the best available data. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Sins of the past. 

 MR. THONET:  Right. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  They’re now saying they are taking that 

data into account. 

 MR. THONET:  Right. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Next point. 

 MR. THONET:  Well, of course, existing conditions is not a 

moving target. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  No; so I’ll grant you that they made a 

mistake in 2008.  But so what?  They’re now doing a study that has all of 

the data points in it-- 

 MR. THONET:  The 2008 study-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --the question is whether the data points 

should be used in this study or not.  Different issue. 

 MR. THONET:  The issue-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  We want to talk about the science; I don’t 

want to talk about past history. 

 MR. THONET:  Senator, the issue is this.  

 SENATOR SMITH:  Is the science good, or is the science bad? 
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 MR. THONET:  Well, we are; and that’s what I’m trying to get 

to. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, you’re giving us a little bit of 

Peyton Place here, you know? (laughter)  Just get to the point.  Why is the 

science bad? 

 MR. THONET:  Existing conditions is in 2004.  You can’t use 

data collected after 2004 to define existing conditions.  And a point of fact, 

most of the well data from the Private Well Testing Act is after 2004. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  They’re now using it. 

 MR. THONET:  The testing data-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  They’re now using it.  Is it wrong to use 

it, right to use it?  Talk about the science. 

 MR. THONET:  Wrong to use it. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Tell us why. 

 MR. THONET:  It’s not the existing condition, as of the 

Highlands Act passage.  That’s what the law says: existing conditions. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Oh, now I get your point.  You’re saying 

that we should be talking about the nitrate at the time of the passage of the 

law. 

 MR. THONET:  That’s right. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  If you had said that sentence, I’d 

understand where you’re going.  

 MR. THONET:  Well, I don’t have as good a coach as you do. 

(laughter) 

 SENATOR SMITH:  No, no, no, no.   

 All right; so your point is made. 
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 MR. THONET:  But I’m trying. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  That’s what the baseline should be.  I got 

it. 

 MR. THONET:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Next. 

 MR. THONET:  So that’s another flaw.  Not only does it have 

a bias, but it’s also -- this is data taken after the Act was passed; and we’re 

trying to maintain the nitrate levels in the Preservation Area with no change 

whatsoever since 2004.  And those 2008 studies didn’t include any data 

past 2004. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. THONET:  Okay.   

 That’s really--  I have--  I submitted another memo to Jeffrey on 

January 16, 2016, in response to his response to me. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right, right.  And the point is--? 

 MR. THONET:  And it just included a lot of questions-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 MR. THONET:  --for some explanation that he could provide 

or the U.S.G.S. could provide for why -- what was the error?  And the letter 

from Mr. Kropp simply says, “There was a statistical correction that we had 

neglected to -- that we had put into the old study that we decided wasn’t 

necessary.”  So I was just asking -- what kind of unnecessary statistical-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right; so let me ask the question. 

 MR. THONET:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Mr. Kropp, what was the statistical 

correction?  Come on over to the microphone. 
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 MR. KROPP:  (off mike)  I brought him today, since he was 

(indiscernible) do the work. (laughter) 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 DR. BAKER:  Okay.  It was basically--  It appeared as though a 

coefficient needed to be added to the equation to make it correct; and it 

didn’t need to be added.  And it was simply my error in adding this, which 

didn’t need to be added. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right.  I want you taken out and 

lashed-- (laughter) 

 DR. BAKER:  I’m sorry? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right.  You’re not permitted to have 

statistical corrections. 

 DR. BAKER:  Okay. 

 MR. THONET:  I was asking for an explanation of what that 

was, and I still haven’t heard it. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So after the meeting, you guys talk. 

(laughter) 

 MR. THONET:  Okay. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Any other points, Mr. Thonet? 

 MR. THONET:  After the meeting, we’ll talk. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Anything else? 

 MR. THONET:  No, that’s it.  And I thank this Committee 

very much. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right. 



 

 

 71 

 So the last witness on this -- we had requested--  The Farm 

Bureau said they had science that they wanted to present.  Do you have 

science, Ed, that you want to present? 

E D   W E N G R Y N:  (off mike)  Unless you guys have questions about-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, what’s-- what science?  Come on 

over for one second.  What science did the Farm Bureau present with regard 

to the septic density?  What science? 

 MR. WENGRYN:  So our lawsuit -- some of the issues that 

were raised here questioned why did they not look at alternative septic 

systems in establishing criteria for nitrate pollution in the Highlands.  If 

you’re wanting to improve water quality, then you need to change the septic 

systems that you’re using -- that old septic technology isn’t working, it’s 

part of the pollution problem.  Why are we repeating, using the same-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  So the Farm Bureau would be in favor of 

actually improving the required septic systems in the State of New Jersey? 

 MR. WENGRYN:  Yes.  We questioned the use of seven wells 

to develop a nitrate background for-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it.  Yes, seven is not a lot of data. 

 MR. WENGRYN:  --800,000 acres.  Come on. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I got it. 

 MR. WENGRYN:  You know-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right; so it wasn’t necessarily science; 

you were attacking-- 

 MR. WENGRYN:  We would reiterate-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --the methodology. 
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 MR. WENGRYN:  And then we also show by changing -- using 

actually the proper population data in the Highlands -- it’s actually lower 

than the rest of the statewide population.  So you have, like, 2.5 per home, 

instead of 2.7; and they’re using 4-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Got it. 

 MR. WENGRYN:  --and if you used real population--  

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 MR. WENGRYN:   So all of those things that Ray had 

mentioned that we had challenged, we brought in experts and did the 

modeling using their model and then alternative models for determining it. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right; got it. 

 Thank you very much, Ed. 

 So this is to be continued; however, I really would appreciate 

anybody with a discussion of the science -- whether the sampling is correct, 

that this is the way the model should be used to establish the density of 

development in the Highlands -- if you would send that to us so we can add 

it to the record, that would be terrific. 

 And then I think all the legislators have to think about and 

decide whether we believe that the model that’s being used with the Well 

Testing Act is appropriate, and should be used as the source of a 

nondegradation standard for the Highlands.  Don’t know the answer; we 

want to read about it, we want to think about it, and we want to hear what 

else you have to say.  The record will be open for an additional two weeks, 

so if you have a scientific opinion -- no conspiracy theories; science -- please 

send them in to Judy. 

 Ray, you wanted to get one last-- 



 

 

 73 

 MR. CANTOR:  (off mike)  Just one last comment. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  One last comment. 

 MR. CANTOR:  First of all, Mr. Chairman-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  By the way, did you ever think that 

nitrates would be so exciting? (laughter) 

 Go ahead, Ray. 

 MR. CANTOR:  I’ve been doing this for quite some time.  I 

remember back when I was with OLS, I had a little jar with sewage sludge 

in there.  So yes, a lot of things become exciting in this field. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes. 

 MR. CANTOR:  I wanted to thank you, Mr. Chairman, and 

this Committee for really focusing on the science today.  I think you had a 

very good discussion. 

 I just wanted to emphasize that’s what we’ve been trying to do.  

As a regulator and as a lawyer, in particular, I don’t have that science 

background; I can’t make those my own decisions, and neither can the 

Commissioner, which is why we rely on a host of scientists -- both within 

the Department and without -- to give us that information. 

 Throughout this entire process, we’ve been working with Mr. 

Hoffman, now our State Geologist; with our Office of Science; running 

things by our Science Advisory Board; contracting with the U.S.G.S. and 

having them do a peer-reviewed document; taking in testimony; meeting 

with environmental groups and others to hear what they have to say; and 

continually challenging our experts if they have heard anything that changes 

their conclusions.  And again, we’ve had a very vigorous process over the 
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last several years.  Again, we think we have the right science and we’re 

making the right decisions.   

 And again, we thank you, Mr. Chairman, today, for also 

focusing on that and highlighting all the efforts that everyone has been 

doing on this issue. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Great. 

 And by the way, we had one other witness planned for today, 

but he had a conflict, and that was Stephen Souza, Ph.D., President of 

Princeton Hydro, who, as an engineer, is taking the--  I’ll read one 

paragraph, but it will be in the record.   

 “The proposed Highlands Density Septic Rule Proposal is 

inconsistent with the anti-degradation rules and the intent of the Highlands 

regulations to protect the region’s surface and groundwater quality.  The 

analysis is flawed in that NJDEP is making use of well data compiled by the 

U.S.G.S. from wells recognized as being ‘clustered in urban areas.’  The 

database is lacking in terms of groundwater data collected from wells 

located within largely undeveloped, forested areas.”  That seems to be the 

issue.  “As such, the NJDEP is using data from developed areas to support 

an increase in septic density throughout the Highlands that could result in 

the degradation of surface and groundwater resources in undeveloped or far 

less developed areas.” 

 So in any case, he has a pretty thorough letter.  That’s a 

paragraph; and if anybody wants a copy of it, Judy has it available. 

 We’re closing the hearing on septic density-- 

 MR. CANTOR:  And if you want, Mr. Chairman, we’ll be 

happy to send you our response to that letter as well, for the record. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  We love to read stuff. (laughter)  So 

please, send in your cards and letters. 

 Now, I have to apologize to the chromium-6 -- the hexavalent 

chromium people.  We’re just not going to be able to do it today, but we’ll 

schedule it for the next hearing because we really want to get started on that 

issue and get some basic information. 

 Our last item today is -- if I can find my agenda -- SCR-39. 

 Now, Senator Bateman is the co-prime, I believe.  Or no? 

 Senator Greenstein is the co-prime, and I think Senator 

Bateman is the sponsor. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay. 

 So this last Bill deals with Natural Resource Damage claims and 

what should be done with the proceeds.  And we’ve had two very difficult 

situations in the last three years: one with the Exxon settlement, one with 

the Passaic River settlement.  And I don’t think anybody is happy about 

how any of that ended up. 

 So what you have here is the start of the process to do a 

constitutional amendment to say that Natural Resource Damages should be 

used for environmental purposes.  Now, those environmental purposes, to 

the extent possible -- you want to clean up whatever the natural resource 

damage is; maybe secondly, you want to apply the damage money to related 

purposes for that watershed; and you also may want to use it for other 

environmental purposes, depending on the size of the proceeds, the nature 

of the claim, etc. 
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 There’s a second issue, and the second issue is the process by 

which the State of New Jersey currently uses outside law firms, in effect, as 

their environmental gunslingers.  They are hired on a contingent-fee basis, 

mostly; and what that means is that these law firms can go for years, and 

years, and years, and years, spending time, their lawyers’ time, and even 

money to chase “polluters.”  And the Attorney General’s Office, unless--  I 

didn’t get the impression that there was a great deal of enthusiasm in the 

Office of the Attorney General to undertake this.  Like every other piece of 

State government, we’re stretched thin on resources.  So the model that 

probably has to be used -- unless somebody can come up with a better 

alternative -- is to continue the environmental gunslinger practice. 

 The way this SCR is written, it says -- it does not address that 

issue.  It says all the money should be dedicated -- with the exception of 

some administrative costs -- all the money should be dedicated toward the 

environmental purposes.  So we haven’t addressed that issue; and you really 

do need to because, otherwise, you’re going to set something up that’s not 

going to work.  There will be nobody to do it. 

 So with that in mind, and to get this on the ballot in 2017, we 

need to pass it in two years with a majority vote.  All right; I don’t think 

there will be a two-thirds vote.  I don’t think that’s possible. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Three-fifths. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Or three-fifths vote.   

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes, based on the past voting. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Based on past voting records, yes.  I 

mean, we’re not making this up. 
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 SENATOR BATEMAN:  So we need 21 now, and 21 in 

January. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Chairman, are you saying you 

think this should be changed, or-- 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  It has to be amended. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I think it has to be changed; the only 

thing is, we’re not going to be able to do it today.  I think what we need to 

do is get it out of Committee today; and then Assemblyman McKeon, on 

the other side, is the sponsor.  And I think we need to sit down and see if 

we can work those issues out and, hopefully, amend it on the floor on 

November 14.  And then the last session for both houses is December 14 -- 

all right? -- so that we have a chance to try and get it passed in the two 

successive years.  So the recommendation is to release it, even though we 

know there are at least two major changes that have to be made. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Mr. Chairman, does Assemblyman 

McKeon have any suggestions on the funding aspect of it, the legal aspect? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I haven’t talked to him yet; that’s the 

problem. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  I’ll reach out to him. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Would you, please? 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes, absolutely. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes, and also talk to him about the use of 

the monies.  We’d like to have a little bit more toward the cleanup of the 

problem-- 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes; that was the goal. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  --that has created the Natural Resource 

Damages; but then other environmental purposes may be acceptable as well.  

So you might have a tiered -- first thing is take care of the damages, etc. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  And Bob, can you just state what 

the two changes are again, just briefly? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, the two areas of change-- 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  We haven’t made them yet. (laughter) 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Two areas. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  We don’t know what the changes are yet.  

The one is, where does the money go; not--  The money has to be used for 

environmental purposes.  But it may also include paying the lawyers, 

because otherwise, I don’t think you’re going to get a system where you’re 

going to have our environmental gunslingers out there doing their thing, all 

right?  And the question is, can State government do it?  I don’t think they 

can. 

 And a sub-question in there is, with the balance, after you pay 

the lawyers, what is the balance used for?  And my thought is, the first 

priority should be the property that created the Natural Resource Damage 

claim first; and then, after that, maybe other things, or maybe stuff related 

to that property.  But we have to work out language. 

 And then the--  Actually, I think those are the two issues, right?  

Lawyers and use of the money -- lawyers and use of the money.  But we 

don’t know the answer yet. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Right. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right.  And we’d love to have you 

involved with the conservations-- 
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 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Okay, that would be great. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --and hopefully we can come up with 

amendments by the 11th; and hopefully we can avoid Appropriations. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes, we don’t want it to go to 

Appropriations. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes; now, we already have some 

amendments that--  We want to release it with the amendments drafted to 

improve it; but we are going to amend it again. 

 Can we have Mr. Potosnak, with amendments?   

 Ed, based on the fact that we’re not ready to amend it, other 

than the amendments that we have, hopefully you can be brief. 

E D   P O T O S N A K:  Very brief. 

 So, hi; I’m Ed Potosnak with the New Jersey League of 

Conservation Voters.  I also serve as Chair of the Keep it Green Coalition, 

which led the constitutional amendment question in 2014 which had 

overwhelming support, 65 percent. 

 For the New Jersey League of Conservation Voters, one of our 

priority issues is putting a lockbox around the NRD funds-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Sure. 

 MR. POTOSNAK:  --to ensure they can make up for the 

degradation that the polluters made in the local community, as you have 

articulated.  That’s critical; it’s been a successful program.  And 

unfortunately, there has been a lot of money grabs from Trenton working 

towards-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Money grabs in Trenton? (laughter) 
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 MR. POTOSNAK:  Yes, taking the money and trying to divert 

it to other purposes.  So unfortunately, we have to be realistic and ensure 

that the many positive impacts over the lifetime of this program are 

continued.  The communities that are disaffected -- this is a one-shot deal 

for them to get the environment restored and back on track to the beautiful 

place it was before it was destroyed. 

 That’s why it’s really important, and we want to thank the 

Committee for taking it up and looking at both those two issues -- about 

making sure we can continue to go after the polluters and that there’s a 

sustainable financial way to do that; and that the communities that are 

impacted see the benefits of the funding.  And that’s really what this is 

about.  And we’re happy to stand with you and continue to work with you, 

as we move it through to tee it up for 2017, so we can stop that raiding 

altogether. 

 So thank you very much. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you. 

 Debbie Mans, New York/New Jersey Baykeeper, in favor. 

D E B O R A H   A.   M A N S:  Thanks; just real quick. 

 As Ed mentioned, these cases were brought for very specific 

reasons and very specific claims to make our communities and our natural 

resources whole.  And diverting the funds into the General Fund does not 

do that.  So we are supportive of this; we are supportive of--  Of course, we 

want to see the final language on the use of outside counsel and outside 

experts -- consultants to bring the cases.  We understand that zero NRD 

cases have been brought under this Administration, and they are actually 

settling out the complaints that were brought under the prior 
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Administration that use outside counsel and resources.  So that’s a really 

critical point about this. 

 And then separately, obviously, supportive of language that 

would require the nexus or connection to the damage -- the original damage 

for the restoration or replacement. 

 So thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  We appreciate your comments. 

 Jeff Tittel, Sierra Club, in favor. 

 MR. TITTEL:  Since we’re talking about amendments, I have a 

couple of other little pieces. 

 Jeff Tittel, New Jersey Sierra Club. 

 And I just want to make one correction.  The Exxon settlement 

-- the State hasn’t gotten the money yet.  We’re still in court, challenging 

that.  So hopefully we can get this passed.  That may be one piece -- us, 

Clean Water Action, Environment New Jersey, and Delaware Riverkeeper 

are actually at the Appellate Division.  So I wanted to make sure that you 

knew that.  So this actually gives us even more of an imperative in some 

ways. 

 The second point I want to make is that we had this language 

in the 2004 CBT dedication for Open Space.  I had asked for it to be in; 

you put it in; it was in the original bill.  Some of the groups that are now 

supporting this -- I’m glad they’ve come around -- worked to take that out 

because there was money going from DEP in that program for some 

restoration programs or stewardship; whatever.  And had that been in place 

in 2014, we wouldn’t be here today and they wouldn’t have stolen $140 

million from the Passaic River or go after the $225 million. 
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 And I did want to add a couple of little points. 

 There are billions of dollars in potential settlements out there.  

This Administration not only has failed to go after (indiscernible) our NRD 

claim; there are some massive pollution problems out there where 

assessments have not been done.  The Ringwood Superfund site, as an 

example; the Quanta Superfund site; the Millville Shieldalloy site; White 

Chemical in Newark.  There are literally over a hundred major sites out 

there and potentially a lot of damages, because these are major sites that 

have had severe impacts to the environment.  The Ringwood site alone has 

polluted billions of gallons of reservoir water right next to the Wanaque 

Reservoir. 

 One other little point I want to make is that you also may want 

to think of language, because we may get another Administration who may 

change it back -- how this program was done originally, by program.  At one 

point, NRD was collected in New Jersey under the Whitman 

Administration as a program.  It was only a change in the law by Senator 

McNamara at the end of her Administration that made you have to sue.  So 

if we can get that--  It’s one thing that we’re going to be working on to see 

changed, so that the DEP could actually assess NRD as a program.  So I 

would respectfully ask if you could add settlements or money from program 

to be dedicated.  But that was a change in the law that happened in-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I think that may--  (confers with staff) 

 You know what?  We need something more specific. 

 MR. TITTEL:  Okay.   

 SENATOR SMITH:  Okay? 

 MR. TITTEL:  We can talk after. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  All right. 

 MR. TITTEL:  And then my final point is that the communities 

have been affected twice: first by the pollution and the burden that it 

creates in the communities; and second, by that money being diverted for 

other purposes.  And I really agree that the money needs to be focused into 

those communities or areas.  For instance, years ago, when the Trenton 

tunnel was being built, we found a pile of toxic goo.  And the NRD money 

for that went to buy salt marsh land down in Salem County instead of 

fixing the D and R Canal in Trenton, or a playground for the people in 

Trenton, or planting trees.  So I think the money should be targeted back 

into the areas where the original damages occurred. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you for the comments. 

 MR. POTOSNAK:  Mr. Chairman, may I just correct 

something real quick? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Well, let me just say two things, because 

it’s--  The “no need to testify slips”:  Amy Hansen, New Jersey Conservation 

Foundation, in favor, no need to testify; Madeline Emde, New Jersey 

Audubon, in favor, with amendments -- which we’re planning to do -- no 

need to testify. 

 Mr. Potosnak, your reprise. (laughter) 

 MR. POTOSNAK:  Just real quick. 

 Jeff had made some good points. 

 One thing I just wanted to correct:  On the NRD language that 

was included in the CBT -- although that language was there, it didn’t have 

the nexus provision, which I think he so clearly articulated why it’s 
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important that the money goes back to the communities that were 

disaffected; and it would have had quite the opposite effect, which could 

have been used anywhere in the state. 

 So that wasn’t perfect language in the CBT; it was quite 

problematic.  So this will also address that issue, and quite well. 

 Thanks. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you. 

 And I missed Mr. Pringle. 

 Mr. Pringle, Clean Water Action, in favor.  

D A V I D   P R I N G L E:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’ll be brief. 

 I’m pleased to be one of the four groups, hopefully, providing a 

service to the State in continuing the Exxon litigation, so that when it’s 

time for -- when we get this done, it won’t be too late for Exxon. 

 A couple--  I’m glad you’re--  I think the two ideas you have for 

amendments are excellent ones.  The language will be important; it is 

critical for it not to go to environmental programs generally, but to the 

communities affected.  As Jeff mentioned, there are many examples of 

money going -- being diverted for otherwise laudable projects, but not 

helping the communities that are most affected. 

 Second, on the lawyers’ front -- we were one of the champions 

under the McGreevey Administration of hiring outside lawyers because the 

State didn’t have the resources to get it done.   So it’s entirely appropriate 

for that to be included. 

 I think the language will be important, though.  I’m not sure 

what the exact answer is, but I think there probably should be some kind of 

cap, whether it’s a percentage or a dollar figure.  For example, under Exxon, 
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the lawyers are getting $55 million.  That’s a huge chunk of money, and 

they did take a lot of risk.  So, you know, we need to factor that in.  But we 

do need the vast majority of the money to be going to the victims of the 

settlement. 

 And then when it comes, it is three-fifths--  I know this issue 

has bipartisan support, but there is more than three-fifths majority in both 

houses by the Democrats.  The problem last time around wasn’t three-

fifths; it was getting it up for a vote in the Assembly.  This passed in the 

Senate last session, but it didn’t pass in the Assembly.  So I think the bigger 

hurdle will be, maybe, getting it up for a vote, not-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Could be. 

 MR. PRINGLE:  I think it would be good--  I think we might 

get three-fifths, and we would certainly be working towards that.  

Regardless, if we’re going to get it in the 2017 ballot without three-fifths, it 

has to sit in final form for, I think it’s 25, 30 days?  I forget exactly what.  

But we don’t--  And it’s the legislative calendar year, so we only have until 

early- to mid-January to get it through the first time, if we’re only going  

simple majority and we want it on the 2017 ballot. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  (confers with staff)  Yes, you may be right 

on the time issue.  But we’re going to try. 

 MR. PRINGLE:  Yes.  So full steam ahead, and let’s get three-

fifths as soon as possible, and then we settle it both ways. 

 And I think that’s it. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Bill Wolfe.  You got a slip in just before 

the bell rang. 
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 Bill. 

 MR. WOLFE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman; great hearing today. 

 I submitted some written comments, asking for clarifications on 

amendments.  And I was outside the room when you began.  So apparently 

you are going to make some amendments? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  To-- 

 MR. WOLFE:  To this resolution, somehow, to-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Oh, to the SCR?  Yes. 

 MR. WOLFE:  Okay. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  On the floor. 

 MR. WOLFE:  Then I conveyed what my thinking in terms of 

the problematic areas with the 5 percent cap for--  The Department’s in a 

Catch-22-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  DEP Administrative; right. 

 MR. WOLFE:  You’re not going to get the settlements if they 

don’t do the technical basis for the settlements.  So you need the resources 

in the Department.  And the way it’s drafted now, you’re going to further 

drain resources from the Department.  

 And the second point, dealing with the uses of the funds -- and 

I missed the initial testimony; I apologize. The uses of the funds -- I think 

we need to restore the dedication, $32 million, to Parks that was previously 

taken away by the current Open Space dedication.  So Parks are being -- 

they’ve lost the legal dedication they previously had, and they have 

diminished resources because they don’t have a dedication anymore and 

they’re competing with other Open Space uses.  So I think the first dibs on 
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this money should be to restore what we may have inadvertently made an 

error on in the Open Space-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I want you to arm wrestle with Debbie 

Mans and tell me who won. (laughter) 

 MR. WOLFE:  Excuse me? 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Arm wrestle with Debbie Mans-- 

 MR. WOLFE:  Okay. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --and tell me who won. 

 MR. WOLFE:  The billionaire who’s building the island in 

Manhattan. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Donald Trump? 

 MR. WOLFE:  No, no; not Donald Trump. (laughter) 

 And so I missed that conversation; so I missed Ms. Mans’ 

testimony.  I apologize.  I was trying to clarify a few issues with Mr. Thonet 

about his testimony. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  It’s the most interesting Committee in the 

Legislature; I got it. 

 MR. WOLFE:  This is one of the better hearings in a long time. 

 The final point is, to clarify the uses of the monies.  And 

everybody was shocked and outraged with the Exxon pennies-on-the-dollar 

thing.  But if you go back and look at the data of the Department’s pattern, 

going to back to the Whitman Administration--  And I worked on the NRD 

program with Sierra Club when Rick Gimello was the Assistant 

Commissioner, so this goes back.  They were always pennies on the dollar, 

all right?  So Exxon was not an aberration; Exxon was just a very big site. 
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 If you want to correct that pennies-on-the-dollar problem, it’s a 

resource question with the State -- you have to beef up the DEP program; 

you have to take it away from Site Remediation where it is governed by the 

Site Remediation process, because they document the injuries, and the case 

manager controls that conversation with the private consultant -- what are 

they called? 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBERS OF AUDIENCE: (off mike)  

LSRP. 

 MR. WOLFE:  LSRP.  So the database to determine injury has 

already been kind of biased in a direction that’s not healthy, in my book.  

And finally, you have to have the Department promulgate regulations.  

Brad Campbell made a commitment to a judge to promulgate regulations, 

and he never did it.  I don’t know how you get away with stuff like that.  

And the courts have, twice or three times -- I cited the case law to you and 

Assemblyman McKeon -- three or four times, courts have found the DEP’s 

NRD are legally deficient because there is not promulgated regulations.  So 

we need to get that in place. 

 And finally, historically, again, Mike Catania, when he ran a 

group called Conservation Resources, Inc., was the go-between between the 

RPs, corporate polluters, and the Department in terms of allocating not 

only the NRD monies, but other settlement monies.  And he produced a 

report; he produced a 10-year report when he closed shop.  And he has data 

and tables, and tables, and tables -- hundreds of cases that he participated 

in and targeted a local conservation group to utilize the money for a 

restoration project.  So that data has to somehow get in the conversation, 

because it’s very helpful so the legislators can see where the money is going.  



 

 

 89 

And the nexus issue -- you can have information to make a nexus analysis 

on. 

 But more importantly, the groups here that testified before you 

were the recipients of those monies. 

 MR. TITTEL:  (off mike)  Not us. 

 MR. WOLFE:  Not Sierra Club; excuse me, let me clarify that.  

Not Sierra Club. (laughter) 

 MS. MANS:  (off mike) It was not NRD money. 

 MR. WOLFE:  So what I’m trying to say is there’s a report out 

there; I suggest you get on the phone and call Mike Catania up at Duke 

Foundation and say, “Mike, why did you take your report down?”  I 

analyzed that report; I excerpted that report; I wrote about that report.  

That report is no longer available online.  I wanted to inject it into the 

testimony today and give you that information; and I can’t give you that 

information.  Because there are several million dollars involved, and it tells 

you who the RP was, where the site was, where the restoration money is 

going, and the local conservation group that got it.  And I think you should 

be cognizant of that, because when a corporate lobbyist gets up here you 

know he has a financial stake, he’s got skin in the game, he’s got a dog in 

the fight.  You need to know the faces that come up here that put a green 

face on -- that they’ve got the same economic interest at stake. 

 And finally, Mr. Potosnak’s claim about why the NRD 

provision in the original Open Space bill -- that it is a post hoc 

rationalization of a very bad decision that he should just ’fess up to.  And 

that’s why--  Let’s get the slate clean; let’s say we made mistakes; we’re 

learning from the mistakes.  We’re going to put the NRD to use first in the 
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Parks.  And I would, like, prefer some honesty to say, “We apologize.  We 

didn’t realize it was going to have such a devastating effect on the Parks.”  

You see, I wish somebody would just be honest.  “I made a mistake.”  Own 

it, and then let’s move on.  But when you get that kind of garbage, that’s 

over my head-- 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes. 

 MR. WOLFE:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  All right, Bill.  You’re going over the line. 

 A motion to release by Senator Bateman-- 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  --a second by Senator Greenstein. 

 Let’s take a vote to release in an imperfect form. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  On Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 39, 

with Senate Committee amendments, Senator Thompson left a “no” vote. 

 Senator Bateman. 

 SENATOR BATEMAN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Greenstein. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Yes. 

 MS. HOROWITZ:  Senator Smith. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Yes. 

 And we’re adjourned. 

  

  

(MEETING CONCLUDED) 

 

 


